* for identification purpose only
EE

2008 Annual Report £

Haier /%<

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
BEEREEARAR

Stock Code & t5%: 01169







Table of Contents

H &%

2 Corporate Profile and Recent Development

EEBN ORER

3 Simplified Corporate Structure
RS E

4  Corporate Information

RAEF

8 Chairman’s Letter

Rt

14  Directors and Senior Management

EENEAERE

8 Financial Review

T 75 @EE

ernance Report

anges in Equity

ow Statement

(e

Balance Sheet

BEERMER

Notes to Financial Statements

BTSRRI EE

Five Year Financial Summary

hFERBRHE



2

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

HHEREEBRAF

Corporate Profile and Recent Development

TRENRITHRERE

Corporate Profile

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 01169) (the “Company”),
a subsidiary of Haier Group, is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are principally engaged in the research, development,
production and sale of washing machines and water heaters under the
brand name of “Haier”.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in Qingdao, Shangdong
Province, the PRC and is today one of the world’s leading white goods
home appliance manufacturers. The products of Haier Group are now
sold in over 100 countries. Haier ranked the thirteen among “Global 600
Most Prestigious Enterprises” in 2008 released on the website of Forbes
by the New York Reputation Institute. Haier is also an official sponsor of
the 2008 Beijing Olympic Games for white goods home appliances.

Recent Development

In 2008, under the implementation of “Rural Area Subsidized Electrical
Appliances Purchase Policy”, the Group consolidated its leading position
in the white goods home appliance market which 15 models of Haier
washing machines had been approved. Through having a perfect sales
network, accelerated logistic development and provision of comprehensive
after-sales services in the 3rd and 4th tier cities, the Group expects its
competitiveness will be sharpened. The Group is confident that the
start of the “Rural Area Subsidized Electrical Appliance Purchase Policy”
in all provinces over China will definitely bring a positive effect to the
Group.
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Simplified Corporate Structure
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Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

BREREERRLA

e

100% Qingdao Haier
Drum Washing
Machine Co., Ltd
FRERRE
HREARAT]

Qingdao Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd.
BEBRARKERAR

Hefei Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd.
AIRBREXEER DA

Foshan Shunde

Haier Electric Co., Ltd.
BBl EE
HRERERAA

Foshan Shunde Haier
Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd.
B0 IEfE
BREEETERAR

Qingdao Jiaonan

Haier Washing Co., Ltd.
FEBE SR
HREER AR

Chongging Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd.
BEEBMERKER DA

-

100% Qingdao Economy and Technology
Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.
F BB R B R
BREUKEER AR

\. 100% Wuhan Haier

Water Heater Co., Ltd.
REETRAKEFBARADR

100% Chongging
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.
BEERBKRARRA
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Corporate Information
ARER

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian (Chairman)
Mr. WU Ke Song (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. LIANG Hai Shan

Mr. CAO Chun Hua

Mr. CUI Shao Hua

Mr. SUN Jing Yan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WU Yinong

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Audit Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Remuneration Committee

Mr. WU Yinong (Committee Chairman)
Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. WU Ke Song

Mr. CUI Shao Hua

Nomination Committee

Mr. YU Hon To, David (Committee Chairman)
Mr. WU Yinong

Dr. LIU Xiao Feng

Mr. CUI Shao Hua

Mr. Ng Chi Yin

As to Hong Kong Law
DLA Piper Hong Kong

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation
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Corporate Information

NEER

Auditors
Ernst & Young

Financial Calendar

Six-month interim period end : 30 June
Financial year end : 31 December

Registered Office

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
in Hong Kong

Unit 3513, 35/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Place of Business in the PRC

Haier Industrial Park

No. 1, Haier Road, Qingdao, the PRC

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Codan Services Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Tricor Tengis Limited

26/F., Tesbury Centure

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone Number

+852 2169 0000

Fax Number
+852 2169 0880

Stock Code

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited:
01169

Websites

www.haier-elec.com.hk

Investor Relations Contact

Elite Investor Relations Limited

12/F, Wilson House, 19-27 Wyndnam Street
Central, Hong Kong
Telephone Number
Fax Number

E-mail Address

(852) 3183 0225
(852) 2155 9165
jonathan.kiu@elite-ir.com
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Chairman’s Letter

ER R

The strategies of maintaining a sound financial position and addressing to
the customer demand will enable Haier Electronics to confidently respond
to the financial tsunami in the market. We believe that we will be in a
better position to capture opportunities when the market recovers.

Overview

Year 2008 was a surprising year that the Group enjoyed significant
increase in both sales revenue and profit in the first half year but was
challenged by the sudden deterioration of market in the second half.
In particular, the unforeseen challenges in the fourth quarter adversely
impacted the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December, 2008
("the Year"”). However, the market position and the brand value of the
Group both remained in leading positions in the industry.

The number of overseas orders in 2008 was affected by the global
financial crisis and the cost of export increased due to the appreciation
of Renminbi. Also, the growth in consumption in the 1st and 2nd tier
markets was limited by the slowdown of the PRC economic growth in
the second half year. We expect that the adverse impacts caused by the
decline in the overall market demand will persist in the short term. To
cope with the current fluctuating and adverse economic conditions, we
have adopted a series of measures, including strengthening the Group’s
product innovation, focusing on cash flow generation, strengthening
the development of the 3rd and 4th tier markets and adhering to a
prudent financial policy.
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Chairman’s Letter

ER R

Business Review

Turnover for the Year amounted to HK$11,409 million, representing an
increase of approximately 33.5% from HK$8,549 million in 2007. The
sales in 2008 was affected by a number of unfavourable factors such
as the global financial crisis, the shrinkage in exports, sluggish property
market, negative domestic consumption sentiment and raw material
prices volatility. On the other hand, the competition in terms of price and
market penetration among domestic and international home appliance
brands was intensifying. Looking at the favourable factors, a series of
policies for stimulating the domestic demand in rural areas such as
the “Rural Area Subsidized Electrical Appliances Purchase Policy” has
effectively boosted up the demand for home appliances in the 3rd and 4th
tier markets. In 2008, the sales of washing machines in the rural market
substantially increased due to the Group’s strategy to increase sales in
the 3rd and 4th tier markets and expand the sales network in rural areas.
Such increase has alleviated the negative effects of the unsatisfactory

exports and sales in the 1st and 2nd tier domestic markets.
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The Group continues to maintain its leading position in the washing
machine and water heater markets in the PRC. In 2008, the Group’s
market shares in these two markets were approximately 31.5% and
21.3% respectively according to China Market Monitor (a market research
company based in the PRC), maintained at a stable level as compared
to 31.9% and 20.4% respectively in 2007.

In order to enhance long-term competitiveness, the Group committed
more efforts to the research and development of high value-added
products and the products catering for the rural market, resulting in
an increase in research and development expenses. The stepping up of
efforts and resources in brand promotion during the Beijing Olympic
Games caused an increase in marketing expenses. The expansion of
the 3rd and 4th tier markets led to higher distribution expenses and
marketing expenses. The development of the information system and
recruiting more global professional talents and experts also resulted in an
increase in management expenses. All these factors brought an adverse
impact on the net profit for the Year. Therefore, net profit attributable
to shareholders in 2008 fell by 11.6% in 2008 to HK$152 million.

To encounter the external economic challenges and enhance the
competitiveness, the key actions taken by the Group in 2008 focused
on the following three major aspects:

Focusing on cash flow generation. Under the circumstances of
shrinkage in product demand and drastic fluctuation of raw material
prices, the Group implemented a series of reforming measures including
the make-to-order and procurement-to-order policy, as well as the
shortening of lead time for manufacture and delivery through a just-in-
time inventory strategy which lowered the inventory level and reduced
working capital. Therefore, the adverse impacts resulting from the
fluctuation in raw material prices in 2008 was alleviated. The Group
believe that its strategy to maintain strong operating cash flow will
reduce inventory risk, prevent capital shortage and ensure the launch
of competitive new products. Strong cash position will also support the
Group’s product innovation and strategic investments.
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Chairman’s Letter

ER R

Strengthening the development of 3rd and 4th tier markets. The
Group will focus on developing the domestic 3rd and 4th tier markets
going onward. Despite the huge potential demand in the 3rd and 4th
tier markets, the issue of distribution, logistics and after-sale services
still needs to be solved. The Group will establish its sales, logistics and
service networks in towns, and further expand to the countryside and
villages gradually by leveraging on the further promotion of the “Rural
Area Subsidized Electrical Appliances Purchase Policy”, so as to extend
the coverage of its network to all customers in the 3rd and 4th tier
markets and provide them with tailor-made solutions.

Product innovation. The products of the Group enjoys worldwide
presence which cater to the diversifying needs and individual preference.
Therefore, the Group’s product innovation is oriented towards addressing
users’ demands and creating customer values in product development.
We ensure that the needs of users and customers are the beginning of
our product development process and expect that the products designed
will cater to the needs of local customers, with high added value as well
as multiple functions. We believe that the continuous product innovation
is the only way for the Group to respond to the intense competition
with both domestic and foreign brands at the amidst of the adverse
market conditions.

Despite the relatively weak market demand at present, the momentum
for the long-term growth in the white goods industry still exists. The
penetration rate of washing machines and water heaters in the rural
markets is relatively low as compared with the urban market, as fuelled
by the growing market demand from rural areas and the Group’s
continuous efforts paid in the marketing activities and expansion of
distribution, logistics and service network, it is expected that ample
business opportunities would be unlocked. In respect of the 1st and 2nd
tier domestic markets, in spite of the unfavourable factors such as the
deteriorated property market and the negative consumption sentiments
of urban residents, demand for the home appliances still exists. The
Group believes that by launching diversified innovative multi-functional
products, it would be able to capture the increased market demand
brought by customers’ willingness to replace old home appliances in
view of the improving living standards.
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Since February 2009, the “Rural Area Subsidized Electrical Appliances
Purchase Policy”, which included the subsidies to the purchase of washing
machines and water heaters, was implemented throughout the PRC.
The policy is stimulating the demand for home appliances in the rural
market and provided new growth impetus for the sales of the Group.
However, under the prevailing sluggish economic environment and the
disparity in products demanded, local market situation, logistic, services
and distribution channels among various rural areas in China (the sale
price in rural market is normally less than that in urban market). As such,
the Group is looking forward to put more resources and efforts into the
rural market, explore and develop the right operating model, try our
best to achieve considerable sales growth amid the fierce competitive
environment, meanwhile realizing a certain profit margin.

Amid the sudden economic downturn, the impact on the Group's results
is confined to the period since the second half of 2008. It is uncertain
when the market will recover. Based on our experience, we must be
humble and adopt prudent financial policies so as to ensure sufficient
funding for our future capital investments.

We will take all necessary actions to maintain the growth generated from
real cash flow. Our brand image, product innovation and sales networks
will only get better during this challenging period. Our greatest assets
are always our commitment to provide our customers with more new
products of higher quality and our competent and innovative employees.
With these fundamentals in place, we will be well-positioned to capitalize
our growth opportunities when the market recovers to normal levels.
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| would like to take this opportunity to thank all my fellow directors RNAZRHE LB EEHLEESRETIRNFRNZBHR
and staff for their dedicated services, contributions and support during ~ fR#% + BEEi k3 -

the year.
By Order of the Board of AEEEW
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. BHEREEARALTE
Yang Mian Mian FiE
Chairman B
Hong Kong, 17 April 2009 BE —_ETZNFMA++H
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

The directors and senior management of the Group as at the date of
this report are as follows:

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 67, has served as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company since January 2005. Ms. Yang is
responsible for determining corporate strategies and overall management
of the Group. She graduated from Shandong Industrial Institute, which
is now known as Shandong University, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") in 1963. As one of the founders of the Haier Group, she has
been in charge of the overall management of the white goods business
since 1984. She is currently the president of Haier Group Corporation
("Haier Corp”) and the chairman of Qingdao Haier Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)).
Ms. Yang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. During
2006 to 2008, she was elected by Forbes as one of “The World’s Most
Powerful Women”. She was the only one who had been elected for
three consecutive years among the Chinese women.

Mr. WU Ke Song, aged 58, has served as the Deputy Chairman and
an Executive Director of the Company since December 2001 and is also
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Wu
is responsible for worldwide business development of the Group and
liaison with relevant government officials. He graduated from Shandong
Industrial Institute, the PRC which is now known as Shandong University,
the PRC in 1974 and joined the Haier Group in 1984. He is also a vice
chairman of Haier Corp and a director of a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 42, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since December 2001. Mr. Liang is mainly responsible for strategic
procurement and overall quality control of products of the Group. He
received a Bachelor’s degree of Industry from the Xian Jiaotong University,
the PRC and has 20 years of experience in the manufacture of household
electrical appliances, in particular in raw material procurement function and
white goods business. He is also a senior vice president of Haier Corp.

Mr. CAO Chun Hua, aged 40, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since January 2005. Mr. Cao is currently the General Manager
of the Group’s washing machine business. He graduated from Hangzhou
Electronic Industry College, the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in 1991. He
joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of senior
positions in the washing machine business. He is also a vice president of
Haier Corp and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENESREEE

Mr. CUI Shao Hua, aged 51, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since November 2002 and is a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Cui is responsible for the Group’s
corporate finance function. Mr. Cui graduated from Jilin Institute of
Finance and Commerce, the PRC in 1982. He joined the Haier Group in
1993 and has over 21 years of experience in financial management and
listed companies’ operations. He is also the deputy managing director
and the secretary to the board of the A-Share Company, a vice president
of Haier Corp and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is
currently also a director of Changjiang Securities Company Limited (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 38, has served as an Executive Director of the
Company since March 2007. Mr. Sun has been the general manager
of the Haier Group’s Electrothermal Product Division since 2005 and
is mainly responsible for the operation of the Group’s water heater
business. Mr. Sun graduated from Shangdong Institute of Light Industry,
the PRC in 1993 with a Bachelor of Engineering in Machine Design and
Manufacture. He joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has since held a
number of senior positions in the Electrothermal Appliance Department
of the Haier Group. Mr. Sun is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. He has over 15 years of extensive experience in water
heater business.

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 46, has served as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Wu graduated from
Portland State University in the United States of America with a Master’s
degree in Business Administration in 1994. He is currently Executive
Director of China Merchants Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited and the
Head of Investment Banking Department. He has been in the investment
banking industry for more than 10 years.

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 21 June 2007. Mr. Yu is a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm with extensive
experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a founder and a director of
MCL Capital Limited (previously known as Management Capital Limited),
which specialises in direct investment and financial advisory activities, and
also sits on the boards of several listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Dr. LIU Xiao Feng, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 21 June 2007. He is currently
Managing Director of DBS Asia Capital Limited. He has worked in various
international financial institutions since 1993, including N. M. Rothschild
& Sons and JP Morgan, and has many years of experience in corporate
finance. Dr. Liu has a Ph.D and Master degrees from the Faculty of
Economics, University of Cambridge and a Bachelor of Economics from
Sichuan Institute of Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu is currently
also an independent non-executive director of CNPC (Hong Kong) Limited
and Honghua Group Limited, both of which are publicly listed companies
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. PENG Jia Jun, aged 31, was appointed as Chief Financial Officer
of the Company on 10 February 2009. Mr Peng has a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of International Business
and Economics and a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
Northeastern University, China. He is currently a Doctoral Candidate in
accounting of Ocean University of China. He joined the Haier Group in
2000 and has since held a number of senior financial positions in Haier
Group finance department, Haier Australia trading company and washing
machine business of the Group.

Mr. QI Guo Xin, aged 32, graduated from Hebei University of
Technology with Double Bachelor’s degrees in Mould Design and
Business Management. He joined the Haier Group in 2001 and has
since held a number of senior positions in the washing machine division.
He is currently responsible for production management of the washing
machine business of the Group.

Mr. LU Pei Shi, aged 45, graduated from Shandong Agricultural and
Mechanical College, the PRC with a Bachelor’s degree in 1987. He joined
the Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of senior positions
in the washing machine business of the Haier Group. He is currently
responsible for the research and development function of the washing
machine business of the Group. He is a member of the Washing Machine
Sub-committee of the International Electrotechnical Commission.
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Mr. ZHANG Zheng Tao, aged 34, graduated from Shangdong Light
Industry University, the PRC with a Bachelor's degree of Material
Engineering. He joined the Haier Group in 1996 and has held a number
of senior positions in the water heater division. He is currently a director
of Electrothermal Appliance Department.

Mr. NG Chi Yin, aged 43, jointed the Company on 18 March 2009
as Company Secretary. Mr. Ng graduated from the Faculty of Business
Administration of the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in business administration. He is also a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He has over 20 years of

experience in auditing, finance and company secretarial matters.
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2008 was a year full of challenges for many players in the white goods
industry due to the fluctuation in raw material prices, negative market
sentiment, slowdown of consumer spending and reduction in export
brought by the global financial tsunami. In the 2nd half of 2008, market
demand declined and inevitably posed a negative impact to the Group’s
financial performance for the whole year. Despite the challenging business
environment, by leveraging on its product innovation, well-established
“Haier” brand image, successful market expansion strategies to tap into
3rd to 4th tier markets and capturing the surging demand in the rural
market, the Group was able to maintain (and in some areas, enhance)
its leading market position in the washing machine and water heater
manufacturing industry. The Group recorded a turnover of HK$11,409
million for the Year, representing an increase of 33.5% as compared to
HK$8,549 million in 2007.

To strengthen its long-term competitiveness in the market, the Group
increased the investment on research and development of high value-
added innovative products which are catering the requirement of the
customers. At the same time, the strengthened brand building activities
such as the sponsoring of the Beijing Olympic Games, expanding in
the 3rd to 4th tier markets, upgrading of the Group’s ERP system and
recruiting global professional talents were measures taken during the
Year to enhance long-term development of the Group. As a result
of the abovementioned measures, the net profit attributable to the
shareholders for the year 2008 decreased 11.6% to HK$152 million
(2007: HK$172 million).

During the Year, the Group also implemented various measures to
maintain healthy operating cashflow including the adoption of make-to-
order policy and reduction in inventory level. As a result, the inventory
for the Year dropped 53.4% from HK$659 million to HK$307 million in
2008, and the inventory turnover days dropped 65% from 40 days in
2007 to 14 days in 2008.
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Washing Machine Business

The Group’s washing machine business comprises the manufacture and
sale of top loading and front loading washing machines, which together
accounted for approximately 80% of total revenue for 2008 (2007: 81%).
Despite the global economic slowdown, sales from washing machine
business increased 31.4% from HK$6,927 million in 2007 to HK$9,102
million in 2008 driven primarily by well-received marketing and promotion
campaigns, strategy of promoting sales in the 3rd and 4th tier markets
and the rural market, and focus on product innovation. In addition, the
Group's sophisticated design and technology were reaffirmed during the
Year by winning awards such as the red dot product design award in
Germany, an internationally recognized quality label for design excellence,
for two consecutive years since 2007. The Group maintains its leading
position in washing machine market in the PRC with market share of
approximately 31.5% according to China Market Monitor.

To ensure steady business growth, the Group increased the expenses in
brand promotion and marketing activities, research and development,
expansion of distribution network in the rural markets, as well as
upgrading IT system. Therefore, the operating profit decreased 39%
from HK$272 million in 2007 to HK$166 million in 2008 whilst operating
margin decreased from 3.9% in 2007 to 1.8% in 2008.

Water Heater Business

The water heater business accounted for approximately 20% of Group
revenue in 2008 (2007: 19%). Revenue grew by approximately 42.2%,
reaching HK$2,308 million in 2008. According to China Market Monitor,
the Group enjoyed the largest market share in the water heater market
in the PRC with approximately 21.3% in 2008.

The Group successfully leveraged on the Beijing Olympic sponsorship to
promote Haier’s product image of innovative, environmental-friendly, high
quality and safety standards which increased consumers’ confidence. It
also increased expenses in research and development expenses as well
as information system. Thus, operating profit decreased by 29.2% from
HK$86.4 million in 2007 to HK$61.2 million in 2008 whilst operating
margin dropped from 5.3% in 2007 to 2.7% in 2008. With the Group’s
extensive experience, expertise and strong emphasis on research and
development, we believe we would be able to capitalize on the growth
opportunities in water heater market in the long run.
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As a whole, Haier's global brand strategy substantially enhanced the
Group’s brand image and customers’ awareness of the Group’s products.
The Group has also successfully demonstrated its image of being at the
technological forefront of the industry. The Group will continue to enhance
its competitiveness by focusing on developing research and development
capabilities so as to bring more diversified products with value-added
features to the market to improve profit margin. The potential growth
in the domestic rural market and that of the international emerging
markets are expected to be new drivers of performance.

Prospects

In this challenging environment, the Group is closely monitoring the
adverse impacts brought by the global economic downturn. The Group is
also undertaking effective measures to enhance operational efficiency and
maintain strong financial position with the aim to cope with unforeseen
events in the market. In addition to its successful marketing strategies
and diverse product mix, the Group is adopting further actions to expand
its share in the domestic markets, increase recognition from worldwide
and proactively penetrate into the international emerging markets such
as Russia and India. Meanwhile, the Group will increase its effort to
the research and development of environmentally-friendly and energy-
efficient products such as solar power water heaters which achieved
world-class technological level.
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It is expected that the business environment in 2009 will continue to be
volatile. However, the Group is confident that with its strong research
and development capabilities, value-added customers-oriented product
development, strong brand recognition and global talents development,
the Group will be able to overcome the challenges and emerge from this
economic challenging period as an even stronger company.

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity position
with a current ratio of 123% as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 114%).
As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a cash and cash equivalents
balance of HK$696 million (2007: HK$595 million);
borrowings of approximately HK$162 million (2007: HK$215 million)
of which approximately HK$28 million (2007: HK$62 million) was due
within one year and approximately HK$134 million (2007: HK$153
million) was due over one year.

bank and other

Due to our focus on cashflow management, the Group has been able
to maintain a very strong cash position with a net cash balance (cash
balance less borrowings) of HK$534 million as at 31 December 2008. Our
sufficient balance of liquidity ensures that we will have a financial flexibility
when the market recovers and investment opportunities arise.

There is no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s borrowing
requirements.

The Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$34 million as at
31 December 2008 (2007: HK$18 million), all being contracted capital
commitments, which were mainly related to purchase of machinery for
the expansion in production capacity of the Group’s businesses.

As at 31 December 2008, the Group maintained a gearing ratio (defined
as total borrowings plus Convertible Notes over net assets) of 13%
(2007: 41%).
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The Group employs a conservative approach to cash management
and risk controls. Most of the Group’s receipts and payments are in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. Cash is generally placed in short term
deposits denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. As at
31 December 2008, most of the Group’s borrowings were denominated
in Renminbi and were principally made on a floating rate basis. Foreign
currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated as liabilities in Renminbi
will be substantially matched by the Group’s earnings, most of which
are from domestic sales in the PRC and are denominated in Renminbi
and only approximately 12% of the Group’s revenue are from export
sales and are denominated in other currencies. The Group does not
have any significant interest rate risk, as the Group has an overall net
cash balance. The Group does not have any financial instruments for
hedging purposes.

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2008
was approximately 16,600, representing an increase of approximately
7.1% as compared to 31 December 2007 and total staff costs for
the year amounted to approximately HK$842 million, representing an
increase of approximately 75% as compared to 2007, which is primarily
due to new employee remuneration scheme to retain high quality staff
and establishment of the group’s global talents tank by recruiting more
global professional talents and experts.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and the
management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound corporate practices are
crucial to the efficient operation of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group” ) and the safeguarding of our shareholders’
interests. In this regard, the Board attaches great priority to reinforce
the Company’s corporate governance standards with emphasis on
transparency, accountability and independence in order to enhance our
long-term shareholders’ value.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December 2008,
complied with most of the applicable code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) and principles under the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for certain deviations
as described below. This report describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices, explains its applications of and deviations from the
CG Code, together with considered reasons for such deviations.

Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”). The Directors are
well-versed in respective areas such as legal, accounting and finance,
business management and industry knowledge and the Board as a
whole has achieved an appropriate balance of skills and experience.
The Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages 14 to 17 of this
annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no financial or family
relationship among the Board members. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgment on all matters concerning the Company.

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the Group’s strategies,
providing leadership and guidance to put them into effect, reviewing
and monitoring the performance of the Group and are accountable
to the Company’s shareholders. To maximise the effectiveness of
the Group’s operations, the Board has delegated management and
administration of the Group’s daily operations to the executive Directors
and the Management while reserving several important matters for its
approval. To this end, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the
"Guidelines”) laying down the division of functions between the Board
and the Management (including the executive Directors for the purpose
of the Guidelines).
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Delegation by the Board (Cont’d)
Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the Board and the
Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining the overall strategy and approving annual operating
budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to ensure that
the business operations of the Group are properly planned and
undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group based
on recommendations made by the audit committee of the
Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for which the
Management is required to obtain the Board’s prior approval;
and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules, approving
transactions in which connected person(s) (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Group is/are considered having a material conflict of
interests.

The Management is principally responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all such other acts as
may be exercised and performed by the Directors, save and except
for those that may specifically be reserved by the Board and/or the
committees set up by the Board for decision and implementation;
or those that may only be exercised by the Board pursuant to The
Companies Act of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws”), the Listing Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business activities,
internal controls and administration of the Company;
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Delegation by the Board (Cont’d)
3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on its business
activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken which may be
inspected by any members of the Board or the Board committees
upon request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines on a periodic
basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the
Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO")

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
Currently, the Company does not have any person holding the title of
CEO. Ms. Yang Mian Mian is the Chairman of the Board and is also
performing the functions of CEO. The Board meets regularly to consider
major matters affecting the business and operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the Management and believes
that this structure enables the Group to make and implement decision
promptly and efficiently.

Under the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board did not attend
the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company as she had overseas
business trip at that time.

INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties
as the executive Directors. They are expressly identified as such in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise in areas of
accounting and finance. With their professional knowledge and experience,
the INEDs advise the Company on its operation and management; provide
independent opinion on the Company’s connected/continuing connected
transactions; participate in the Company’s audit committee meetings,
remuneration committee meetings and nomination committee meetings.
The INEDs also contribute to provide adequate checks and balance to
protect the interests of the Company and the Company’s shareholders
as a whole, and to promote the development of the Company.
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INEDs (Cont’d)

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all INEDs to be independent as the date of this report.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for specific terms, subject to reelection. Currently, all INEDs
are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with Bye-laws. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages containing
the duties and responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and
other applicable rules and regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time on the latest
legislative and regulatory developments to ensure that they are fully
aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules, applicable legal
and regulatory requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly discharged, the
Directors are entitled to seek advice from independent professional advisers
whenever deemed necessary by them at the Company’s expense.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2008, apart from consents obtained
by means of written resolutions of all the Board members, the Board
had held four scheduled meetings at approximately quarterly intervals
to review and approve, among other things, the 2007 annual results
and 2008 interim results, discloseable and connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Group. The Company’s board
meetings (the “Board Meeting(s)” ) are permitted to be held by means
of telephone or other means of electronic communication under the
Bye-laws.

Reasonable notices are served and comprehensive information is provided
to the Board members in advance of all the Board Meetings in order to
enable them to make informed decisions on all matters transacted at
the Board Meetings.
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Board Meetings (Cont’d)

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by the Chairman of
the Board or another executive Director who ensures that sufficient time
is allowed for discussion among the Directors and equal opportunities
are being given to the Directors to express their views and share their

concerns.

The Company Secretary attends the Board Meetings to advise Directors
on corporate governance practices, and statutory compliance, accounting
and financial issues whenever deemed necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing minutes recording
all matters transacted and resolved at the Board Meetings. All the Board
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection
by the Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors at the
scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended 31 December 2008:
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No. of the scheduled Board Meetings attended/held

BITES

Executive Directors:

HiRmEt (FE)
Rt (BEE)

Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2L %A
Mr. Cao Chun Hua EHRELE
Mr. Cui Shao Hua BELESE
Mr. Sun Jing Yan BRERE
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMBEAE
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNEE A

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Gl

HE BT EHESEERIRY

2/4
0/4
0/4
1/4
4/4
1/4

3/4
3/4
3/4
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Board Meetings (Cont’d)

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in with the
tight and busy schedules of all the Directors. In particular, as certain
of the executive Directors devote considerable time and efforts to the
management and operation of the Group’s business, they were only able
to attend some of the Board Meetings in person and their attendance
rate at the Board Meetings were relatively low during the fiscal year
of 2008. To enable all the Directors to keep abreast of the Group’s
latest development and to discharge their duties properly, the Company
Secretary briefed the Directors on those matters transacted at the Board
Meetings that they were unable to attend. In addition, draft and final
versions of the Board minutes are sent to all Directors for their comments
and records.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model Code”) on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry
by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard as set out in the Haier Electronics Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines (the “Employees’
Guidelines for Securities Transactions”) for securities transactions by
employees (the “Relevant Employees”) who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price sensitive information of the Company on no less
exacting terms than the Haier Electronics Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry of all the Relevant Employees, the Company confirmed
that all the Relevant Employees had complied with the required standard
as set out in the Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”),
a Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and a
Nomination Committee (the “Nomination Committee”) (collectively the
“Committees”) to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Committees report to the Board regularly, and have been provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their respective duties. To reinforce
independence, the chairman of the Committees is an INED. Each of
the Committees has adopted specific terms of reference covering its
duties, powers and functions which will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of the
Committees. The Committees adopt as far as practicable, the procedures
and arrangement of the Board Meeting in relation to the conduct
of meetings, notice of meetings and recording of minutes. Further
particulars of each of the Committees are set out below:
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Board Committees (Cont’d)

(1)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three INEDs and is
chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr. Yu is a professional accountant
and was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the Group’s external auditors and review of the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management systems.
Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to
the Group’s external auditors and the Management.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Audit Committee
held four meetings with an attendance rate of 100% to review the
management and accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and to discuss internal controls and financial reporting
matters including the review of 2007 annual results and 2008
interim results of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the Audit
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2008:

INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Wu Yinong RIMEFE
Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNRESE
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng ZlEEle g+
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(2)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises five members
including two executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr.
Cui Shao Hua and all three INEDs. The Remuneration Committee
is chaired by Mr. Wu Yinong, an INED. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations
to the Board on policy and structure of all remuneration of
the Directors and Management. Each of the Directors has not
involved in the determination of his’/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting. At the
meeting, members of the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration packages and overall benefits of the Directors and
Management by taking into account factors such as remuneration
packages and benefits offered by comparable companies, the
respective contribution of each of the Directors and Management
to the Group and the business objectives of the Group.

The following table shows the attendance of members of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December
2008:

Executive Directors: HITES

Mr. Wu Ke Song RifdE

Mr. Cui Shao Hua BELELE
INEDs: BUFHTES :
Mr. Wu Yinong RINERA

Mr. Yu Hon To, David BNRE A

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng Elli=leS i
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(3) Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee was formed on 19 September 2008 and
currently comprises four members including one executive Director,
namely, Mr. Cui Shao Hua and all three INEDs. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To David, an INED. The
Nomination committee meets at least once a year.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for formulating
nomination policy and making recommendations to the Board on
nomination and appointment of Directors and Board succession. It
also develops selection procedures of candidates for nomination,
reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assesses the independence of the INEDs.

Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee and review
and approval of such nomination by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates by considering factors
such as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics
and integrity.

No meeting of the Committee has been held during the period
from 19 September 2008 to 31 December 2008. During the year
and prior to the establishment of the nomination committee, the
Board held one meeting to consider the suitability of the re-election
of the Directors who were subject to the retirement by rotation at
the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

It is the Company’s practice to include details of the procedures for voting
by poll and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll in the circulars
to shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules.
The poll results of special general meetings are also published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange. The Board regards general meetings as
one of the principal channels of communications with our shareholders
and the Directors provide detailed and complete answers to questions
raised by the shareholders in the general meetings.
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The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance to indemnify the Directors and senior staff of the Group
for their potential liabilities incurred by them in discharging their
duties. The Group reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors
and the Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
financial statements of the Group in accordance with relevant
statutory requirements and generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong and ensuring that the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Group’s financial position. In preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2008, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently; made judgments and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable; and prepared the financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s development and
prospects in all corporate communications, including but not limited
to annual and interim reports, any price sensitive announcements
and financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, any
reports to regulators as well as to information required to be
disclosed pursuant to other statutory requirements.

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal controls
and risk management procedures to identify and manage the risks
that may be faced by the Group, as well as to safeguard the interests
of the Group and our shareholders as a whole.

The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate internal controls
and risk management procedures in the Group, and for reviewing its
effectiveness through the Audit Committee on an on-going basis.
The Board has delegated to the Management the implementation
of the Group’s internal controls covering financial, operational and
compliance aspects, as well as risk management procedures.
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During the year, the Company has engaged external independent
professionals to assist in its review on the operation of individual
divisions of the Group and in its assessment of the effectiveness of
Group’s internal control systems and risk management procedures
in its major business and operational processes. The Company
has established an internal control review plan to cover its major
internal control systems covering areas including operational control,
financial control and compliance control. Recommendations for
further improvements have been reported to the Audit Committee
and the Audit Committee has, in turn, reported the same to
the Board together with its assessment and recommendations.
Such recommendations have been or are being followed up by
management. The Company is committed to maintain an effective
internal control system and will make sure that adequate resources
and management attention will be devoted to strengthen its internal
controls and risk management procedures.

The Group does not currently has an internal audit function.
Recognizing the importance of internal controls and risk
management procedures, the Group has planned to set up an
internal audit department in the forthcoming year with the
assistance of external independent professionals in establishing
internal audit procedures and in provision of appropriate training
to the relevant personnel.

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants. During the year, the annual audit fees
and non-audit fees payable/paid by the Group to Ernst & Young
were HK$5,000,000 and HK$3,598,000, respectively.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture and sale of
washing machines and water heaters. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 50 to 143.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share and a special interim
dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share were paid on 28 November
2008.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year.

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 144. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital, share options and
convertible notes during the year are set out in notes 29, 30 and 26 to
the financial statements, respectively.
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Report of the Directors
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

During the year, the Company purchased certain of its ordinary shares
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(the “Shares”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the FTDEBEIERTEZ@BAR([ARMN]) - BEEFHEZS

“Stock Exchange”) and these Shares were subsequently cancelled by the &7 ° ZEX S 2 F BT ¢
Company. The summary details of those transactions are as follows:

Number of Price per share Total

shares repurchased Highest Lowest price paid

Bm BRE®R eft

Month V=hvi) RHEE &S =35 BER

HK$ HK$ HK$'000

BT BT FHT

September 2008 —ZEZNFENA 281,000 0.79 0.78 223

October 2008 2 N\F+A 1,813,000 0.79 0.38 1,079

2,094,000 1,302

The purchased shares were cancelled during the year and the issued capital
of the Company was reduced by the par value thereof. The premium paid
on the purchases of the Company’s shares of HK$1,093,000 has been
charged to the share premium account of the Company. An amount
equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled has been transferred
from the retained profits of the Company to the capital redemption
reserve. The purchase of the Company’s shares during the year was
effected by the directors, pursuant to the mandate from shareholders
received at the last annual general meeting.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

At 31 December 2008, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the applicable law of
Bermuda, amounted to HK$860,491,000. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of HK$978,146,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for 77% of the total sales for the year and sales to the
largest customer included therein amounted to 24%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 99% of the total purchases
for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 74%.

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao
Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier Investment”)
(collectively the “Haier Group”), the substantial shareholders of the
Company, had beneficial interests in two and five of the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any of their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers
or suppliers.
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The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Yang Mian Mian

Wu Ke Song

Liang Hai Shan

Cao Chun Hua

Cui Shao Hua

Sun Jing Yan

Independent non-executive directors:
Wu Yinong

Liu Xiao Feng

Yu Hon To, David

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Yang Mian Mian, Wu
Ke Song and Liang Hai Shan will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not
appointed for any specific terms and are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Wu Yinong, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon To, David, and, on
the basis of such confirmations, still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 14 to 17 of the annual
report.

During the year, no director had a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company‘s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2008, no director had registered any interests and
short positions in the share(s) (“Share(s)”) or the underlying Shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares in or
Debentures of the Company

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
director of the Company or their respective spouse or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors

E52%

R E

At 31 December 2008, the following shareholders interested in 5% or

more of the issued Shares and/or underlying Shares were recorded in the

register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:

Name of shareholder

Qingdao Haier Collective Asset

Management Association (“Haier

RERERE

FEEMEREETENS
([emEREEER])

Collective Asset Management”)

Haier Corp BREE AR
Haier Investment BRIEE

Qingdao Haier Co.,Ltd.
(“Qingdao Haier"”)

Qingdao Haier Group Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“Haier BVI") BRAT

Haier Electrical Appliances Third Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“Haier Third BVI")

EESAKRNARAR
(I5586E])

SEBRERZERREBV)
7 ([8EBVI )

B EEE ZIEREBV)ARA
(['E@E=8BVI)

Notes:

1.

As at 31 December 2008, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective
Asset Management was deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 1,459,042,592 Shares, including (i) 336,600,000 Shares held
by its non-wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Haier Investment; (ii)
82,650,000 Shares held by Haier Investment’s indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary; and (iii) given Haier Investment was acting in
concert with Haier Corp and Qingdao Haier, Haier BVI and Haier
Third BVI are non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of Haier Corp, Haier
Collective Asset Management was also deemed to be interested in
392,677,482 Shares held by Qingdao Haier, 547,115,110 Shares
held by Haier BVI and 100,000,000 Shares held by Haier Third BVI
pursuant to the SFO.
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares the Company’s
Notes interested issued share capital
BEERZZ EARARREZ
k3 ERTRHHE BHEDE
1,4 1,459,042,592 74.76
2,4 1,459,042,592 74.76
3,4 1,459,042,592 74.76
392,677,482 20.12
547,115,110 28.03
100,000,000 5.12

Hiat
RZEZENF+ZA=+—HB " BEEFR
HEKRM SREREEEEREANAH
1,459,042 5928 By h A #E % - BIRG)EIF
232 W A R)S A 1R A FF 3% 4 2 336,600,0008%

& (VERREZHEIFEEZEMBAREE
282,650,000 A% 17 : (i) /ERILE EE
MEERF N —0TE ME5S5E8 - BHBVI
FMERE=BVIHASRER AR ZIEEENES
NE BUREB S RBAERY - BREEE
?E.I@?T%Eiﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁ%xiﬁ%hﬁ2392,677,482
A& A 1D~ B RBVIEA 2547,115, 1100 ix 5 &
5 7 55 =BVI¥ A 2 100,000,0000% X 17 b &
¢ /\ °
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Notes: (Cont'd)

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan,
the executive directors of the Company, are also members of the
board of management of Haier Collective Asset Management.

2. As Qingdao Haier, Haier BVI and Haier Third BVI are the non-
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Haier Corp, Haier Corp was deemed
to be interested in 392,677,482 Shares held by Qingdao Haier,
547,115,110 Shares held by Haier BVI and 100,000,000 Shares
held by Haier Third BVI pursuant to the SFO as at 31 December
2008.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with Haier
Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested in 336,600,000
Shares held by Haier Investment and 82,650,000 Shares held by a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Investment as at 31 December
2008.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai Shan,
the executive directors of the Company, are also the members of
the management committee of Haier Corp.

3. Haier Investment held 336,600,000 Shares and was deemed to be
interested in 82,650,000 Shares held by its indirect non-wholly-
owned subsidiary as at 31 December 2008. Moreover, Haier
Investment was deemed to be interested in 392,677,482 Shares
held by Qingdao Haier, 547,115,110 Shares held by Haier BVI and
100,000,000 Shares held by Haier Third BVI pursuant to the SFO by
reason of its acting in concert with Haier Corp as at 31 December
2008.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Cui Shao Hua, the executive directors
of the Company, are also directors of Haier Investment.

4. As at the date of this report, by virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective
Asset Management, Haier Corp and Haier Investment was each
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 1,376,392,592 Shares,
as 82,650,000 Shares held by the indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Haier Investment were disposed of in 2009.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, no other person had
registered an interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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(a)

The Company’s subsidiaries, Qingdao Haier Washing Machine Co.,
Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Hefei Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd.,
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd., Chongging
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing
Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd., Wuhan Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongging
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales
Co., Ltd. had the following material transactions with Haier Corp,
Haier Investment, their subsidiaries and associates (collectively
referred to as Haier Affiliates):

Group

th O 85 B IR K 2Kk 25

Export sale of washing machines
and water heaters

Domestic sale of washing machines I A 8 5 AR TR A
and water heaters R EOK S

Purchase of raw materials REERE

Printing and packaging fee expenses  ENff| R EH & 1

Mould charges REELH

Utility service fee expenses NARBESH

Logistics charges Lk -S4

Promotion fee expenses EEETH

Other service fee expenses HAth AR5 & =

Interest expenses FEZE

Interest income FEMKA

Trademark licence fee expenses PR E T

Consignment sale commission income  EmAEMAEWMA

Sale of gift products HEE M
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HRIEE BEZMBARIRBE AR (HEA
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rEE
2008 2007
—EBENF —ETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FER FAT
(i)
1,055,650 846,869
(i) 2,732,035 480,068
(iif) 7,055,462 6,151,475
(iv) 26,340 24,767
(v) 206,692 100,524
(vi) 60,430 51,714
(vii) 378,761 281,243
(viil) 124,099 92,432
(ix) 161,101 89,691
(x) 14,738 11,043
(x) 4,848 5,095
(i) - 40,195
(xii) - 3,684
(xiii) 6,402 5,644
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(a)

(Cont'd)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The export sale of washing machines and water heaters
were made to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Electrical”), a subsidiary of Haier Investment, at selling prices
representing differences between the selling prices of washing
machines mutually agreed and the selling expenses of Haier
Electrical not exceeding 1.5% (2007: 2.5%) of the selling
prices of washing machines.

During the year, the domestic sale of washing machines and
water heaters were made at a unit price not less than the
average selling prices of the same type of products sold to
the independent top five customers of the Group in 2007.

In last year, the domestic sale of washing machines and water
heaters were determined at rates mutually agreed between
the related parties.

The purchase of raw materials were made at prices not higher
than the consolidated and integrated tender and bidding price
plus a commission fee of not higher than 2.6%.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged based
on terms no less favourable than those offered by independent
third parties.

Moulds were charged with reference to the average market
tender and bidding price plus actual administrative costs.

Utility service fee expenses were charged based on the state-
prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs.

Logistics charges were charged based on terms no less
favourable than those offered by independent third parties.

Promotion fee expenses were charged based on 1.2% of the
domestic sales of washing machines and water heaters of the
Group.

Other service fee expenses were charged with reference to
actual cost incurred.
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(a)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

The interest expenses and income were determined with
reference to the standard rates published by the People’s Bank
of China.

The maximum loan balance taken out and bank deposits
balance placed with Haier Finance related to the above interest
expenses and income during 2008 were HK$228,296,000 and
HK$576,545,000, respectively.

The trademark licence fee expenses were charged at a
nominal consideration of RMB1 during the year (2007: 0.8%
of certain sales made by Qingdao Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Hefei Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd., and Chongging Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd.).

The consignment sale commission income in 2007 was
determined at 2% of the turnover of the sales of the
outstanding inventories of washing machines and water
heaters owned by subsidiaries of Haier Investment at 31
December 2006.

The sale of gift products were made at selling prices not
higher than those sold by Haier Affiliates to independent third
parties.

The above transactions were defined as the Continuing Connected

Transactions in the circulars to the shareholders of the Company
dated 26 November 2007 and 26 May 2008, respectively, and
were approved by the shareholders at special general meetings
of the Company held on 12 December 2007 and 20 June 2008,
respectively.

(a)
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(a)

Notes: (Cont’d)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions set out above
and have confirmed that they were entered into:

(i)  in the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group;

(i) either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent
third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

As at the balance sheet date, Haier Corp provided corporate
guarantees up to RMB143,000,000 (2007: RMB201,000,000)
(equivalent to HK$162,419,000 (2007: HK$214,973,000)) to Haier
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a subsidiary of Haier
Corp and a financial institution approved by the People’s Bank
of China, for loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s

total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this

report.
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Report of the Directors
EEEREE

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set
out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Yang Mian Mian

Chairman

Hong Kong
17 April 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZEMHRES

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= Ik

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Haier Electronics Group Co.,
Ltd. set out on pages 50 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

Directors’
statements

responsibility for the financial

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZEMHES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
17 April 2009
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BEEREEARAAF

Consolidated Income Statement

= A 3
%/T\ (=] LI ﬁﬁ%
Year ended 31 December 2008
HE-TT)\F+-A=1+—HIUFE

2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BRE FExT FAT
REVENUE &= 5 11,409,480 8,549,239
Cost of sales $HE R A (8,120,162) (6,058,011)
Gross profit EF 3,289,318 2,491,228
Other income and gains H AU A e Wz 5 34,487 34,521
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SHA A (2,268,165) (1,646,661)
Administrative expenses TERE R (824,152) (527,071)
Other expenses HibZE A (13,442) (5,993)
Finance costs A KA 7 (15,733) (24,068)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR R 6 202,313 321,956
Tax 1A 10 (27,336) (96,259)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F N Al 174,977 225,697
Attributable to: FE1h
Equity holders of the parent B R ARERE A 11 152,183 172,131
Minority interests DY R ER 22,794 53,566
174,977 225,697
DIVIDENDS KA 12
Interim B 39,054 =
Special interim Rl A HR 39,054 =
78,108 -
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREERESFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EhRERAR
ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic AR
— For profit for the year —FE R HK7.81 centsi#fll  HK9.29 centsi&1ll
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — FE R A N/ATEH HK9.22 centsi& il
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BHEEEMERLH
Consolidated Balance Sheet
g A ==
LEEEBER
31 December 2008
—EENFF+=-A=1+—H
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FHxT FHBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - [R5 M&E 15 742,804 758,236
Prepaid land premiums TEfF £ HbER 16 80,469 77,745
Intangible assets B EE 17 1,836 1,484
Deferred tax assets EEFITAE B 28 32,052 49,506
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 857,161 886,971
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories ="E 19 307,201 658,534
Trade and bills receivables JEUE IR AR 20 2,398,419 1,347,026
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE - 'e
other receivables N E A R U BR 3R 21 101,844 178,255
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEER 22 696,151 595,426
Total current assets mENEERE 3,503,615 2,779,241
CURRENT LIABILITIES HREEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BR R 23 1,047,320 1,032,041
Tax payable FEfSHIIR 54,831 104,269
Other payables and accruals HipENERA R IERTAE 24 1,543,705 1,013,902
Provisions B 27 182,181 63,898
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE 25 28,168 62,032
Convertible notes Al AR I 26 - 169,344
Total current liabilities mB A ERTE 2,856,205 2,445,486
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 647,410 333,755
TOTAL ASSETS LESS WEER
CURRENT LIABILITIES HEBAE 1,504,571 1,220,726
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kARBAE
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 25 134,252 152,941
Provisions B 27 90,334 125,661
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIARE 28 10,890 =
Total non-current liabilities EREEELREE 235,476 278,602
Net assets BEFE 1,269,095 942,124
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BEEREEARAAF

Consolidated Balance Sheet

AN =3
meBEERER
31 December 2008
—ERN\F+=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —ZTTLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bk THET THET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity R RIRERE ARG ER
holders of the parent
Issued equity BT 29 1,439,002 1,248,210
Equity component of AR IR 2 A
convertible notes - 22,094
Reserves (& fE 31(a) (278,115) (422,904)
1,160,887 847,400
Minority interests DHRR RS 108,208 94,724
Total equity e BE 1,269,095 942,124
Yang Mian Mian Cui Shao Hua
Chairman Director
FE =
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BEEREEARAAF

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAEERDE

Year ended 31 December 2008

BE-TE/\FI-A=t—ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BARRESAAEL
Equity
component Retained
Capital of Capital profits/  Exchange
Issued  reduction Capital ~ convertible Merger  Reserve redemption (accumulated fluctuation Minority Total
equity  reserve  reserve notes reserve funds  reserve losses) ~ reserve Total interests equity
BEfT R4 TERRE 5 REEN/ HE |

BE HERE BARE 2EEIY  AKRE  BEEC  WERE (RHER) RERE 2% BRRER B4R
Notes  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fist AL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL T AL TEL TEL

(note) (note) (note) (note) (note) (note) (note)
(M=) (BzE) (BizE) (H3k) (Hf3k) (RzE)

At 1 January 2007 RZFSt5-A-B 1,212,960 - - 22,094 (546,765) 162,305 - (260,166) 53,691 644,119 154,448 798,567
Exchange realignment EfRE - - - - - - - - 64388 64388 12079 76467
Total income and expense

recognised directly in equity &8 - - - - - - - - 64,388 64,388 12,019 76,467
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - 53566 225,697
Total income and expense ERRARBRER

for the year - - - - - - - 172,131 64,388 236,519 65,645 302,164
Acquisition of minority interests M A ERFEES - - - - - - - (68,488) - (68488)  (94489)  (162,977)
Dividends paid to minority ENDERERE

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (30,880) (30,880)
Capital reduction 7l 29 - (1,657,866) 1,657,866 - - - - - - - - -
Elimination of accumulated losses - - (1,196,370) - - - - 1,196,370 - - - -
Exercise of share options 29 35,250 - - - - - - - - 35,250 - 35,250
Transfer to reserve funds - - - - - 58,730 - (58,730) - - - -
At 31 December 2007 and

1 January 2008 1208210 (1657866)  4614% 22094  (546765) 221,035 - LT 118079 847400 94724 94124
Exchange realignment EfRE - - - - - - - - 074 70714 4673 75,387
Total income and expense BER

recognised directly in equity RERES - - - - B B - - 70,714 70,714 4673 75,387
Profit for the year Egf - - - - - - - 152,18 - 15,18 279 174977
Total income and expense ERRARBRER

for the year - - - - - - - 152,183 70,714 222,897 21,467 250,364
Interim dividend ke 12 = = = = = = = (39,054) = (39,054) - (39,054)
Special interim dividend BHlRERE 12 - - - - - - - (39054 - (39054 - (39054
Conversion of convertible notes ~ #AFERERE 2% 192,004 - - (22,09) - - - - - 170,000 - 170,000
Shares repurchased BERA 29 (1,302) - - - - - 209 (209) - (1,302) = (1302)
Dividends paid to minority BtDERERS

shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (13,983) (13,983)
Transfer to reserve funds BRORERS - - - - - 323 - (3223 - - - -
At 31 December 2008 1,439,002 (1,657,866) 461,49 - (546,765) 224,258 209 1,051,760 188,793 1,160,887 108,208 1,269,095
Note: These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of [fizf: ZEHRERERESREGEEABRR 2K

HK$278,115,000 (2007: HK$422,904,000) in the consolidated & & 278,115,000 T( Z T T £ F:
balance sheet. 422,904,000 L) °
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BEEREEARAAF

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

|'I—_|_\ IE%/)ILE%‘:Z

Year ended 31 December 2008
HE_TTN\F+-A=+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM REXEBHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 52 AT A1) 202,313 321,956
Adjustments for: TELAT 8%
Finance costs REBA 15,733 24,068
Interest income F BUgA (CALY)) (10,121)
Depreciation e 96,653 80,061
Recognition of prepaid land TERTET TR
premiums 2,064 2,324
Amortisation of intangible assets A EEH 645 355
Provision for obsolete and B R T B RS
slow-moving inventories 40,526 5,226
Loss on disposal/write-off of tb'ﬁ/ﬁﬁéi%¥ - B K&
items of property, plant RiEEE BEEE
and equipment, net 5,499 5,993
Impairment of other receivables Hh U BR SORE 7,943 -
364,179 429,862
Decrease in long term prepayments REFFER SRIBR D - 5,169
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®RAL, () 310,807 (455,690)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEWE 5 Rk R &
[ FEEIES WA (35hn) (1,051,393) 272,382
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfFRIA R R EA
deposits and other receivables FEURBRFOR A~ (3 h0) 68,468 (75,951)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables JEE SRR
#in, Cd) 15,279 (177,972)
Increase in other payables E fth JE S BR SR S FE & T
and accruals B EEN 529,803 145,588
Increase in provisions ﬁé‘%ibﬂ 82,956 18,394
Effect of foreign exchange FERF ) EFEE
rate changes, net 10,032 11,288
Cash generated from operations REEBRRIRE 330,131 173,070
Interest received BHFH A 7,197 10,121
Mainland China corporate BT B RRER TS H
income tax paid (48,430) (40,058)
Net cash inflow from operating KEEB 2 REeRNFE
activities 288,898 143,133
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BREREEERAA
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
n-/T\ IE%/JILE%‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2008
HE-_TEN\F+-RA=+—HIFE
2008 2007
—EENF ZETEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MiaE FHET FBT

Net cash inflow from operating AR 2 RSN FEE

activities 288,898 143,133
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBHZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYXE  HEKEE

plant and equipment and HE RERERE

interest capitalised 15 (43,120) (95,447)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEWME - BE K&

of property, plant and equipment 18 B FrfS k18 2,542 207
Additions to other intangible assets L S 2 17 (903) =
Acquisition of minority shareholders LlﬁZﬁﬁ DB R R - (162,977)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits F’:‘HX?%?E? H#E5T

with original maturity over 'JHJ% Eliiﬁ & Az €8

three months when acquired /T)\ b (3Ehn) (84,049) 228,000
Net cash outflow from WEEE 2R e FEE

investing activities (125,530) (30,217)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETBHZHERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon E S AR T T (R T 31T

exercise of share options B&A% FTiS 3k I8 29 — 35,250
Interest paid =ENEESS (15,077) (9,641)
Dividends paid to minority interests EHQ?&HQ?H&E ((EXLE)) (30,880)
Dividends paid B E (78,108) =
New borrowings FrEEE - 125,333
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (65,877) (59,487)
Repurchase and cancellation B B K R 8H 3 m AR

of ordinary shares 29 (1,302) -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from ﬁi\ﬁxﬁﬁzfﬁﬂz

financing activities wA GRAE) F58 (174,347) 60,575
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH  H&RBESZEEH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z®Em (Rd) B8 (10,979) 173,491
Cash and cash equivalents FzRe kR

at beginning of year £EIEE 595,426 398,802
Effect of foreign exchange ME =SB 2 H

rate changes, net 27,655 PEREE]
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZASRAE

AT END OF YEAR £EEE 612,102 595,426
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRELEEE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Z AR ER D T
Cash and bank balances R RIBITHE 22 394,289 470,754
Time deposits with original REREYSE A iBat

maturity of less than three =@EAR 'JHH

months when acquired 2 EHTFR 22 217,813 124,672

612,102 595,426
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BEEREEARAAF

Balance Sheet
EEEEX

31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET F&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries iEINGEIL 18 2,143,232 2,143,636
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRI © R R E A IR K
other receivables 21 1,166 999
Cash and cash equivalents RekFeEMEIEE 22 159,088 143,403
Total current assets M EEEE 160,254 144,402
CURRENT LIABILITIES HREEE
Other payables and accruals EMEMNERREGTAE 24 184,385 202,359
Convertible notes AR ZE IR 26 = 169,344
Total current liabilities mEBEERE 184,385 371,703
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEFHE (24,131) (227,301)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERARBEE
LIABILITIES 2,119,101 1,916,335
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FFRBAE
Due to subsidiaries FETBT B A B FIE 18 85,088 81,060
Net assets BEFE 2,034,013 1,835,275
EQUITY R
Issued capital B EITRA 29 195,167 185,932
Equity component of ARER 2 Bm iy
convertible notes - 22,093
Reserves & 31(b) 1,838,846 1,627,250
Total equity e BE 2,034,013 1,835,275
Yang Mian Mian Cui Shao Hua
B b= LF -3
Chairman Director
TE -
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=A=1—H

1. Corporate Information

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

o manufacture and sale of washing machines
o manufacture and sale of water heaters

In the opinion of the directors, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier
Corp”) and Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
(“Haier Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier Group”) are
controlling shareholders of the Company. Haier Corp and Haier
Investment are registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2008. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
income, expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

1.

2.1
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BEEREEARAAF

Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders not

held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company's

subsidiaries. An acquisition of minority interests is accounted for

using the entity concept method whereby the difference between

the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets

acquired is recognised as an equity transaction.

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations and

amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s

financial statements.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Annual Report 2008
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Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement and HKFRS7
Financial Instruments: Disclosures
— Reclassification of Financial
Assets

HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

Service Concession Arrangements

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

2.1 mAEE(E)
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=A=1—H

22 A REETEEMBREER
Ta(E)

e — |

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs RN RISIERI BB B E LR 2 EER

are as follows: 20T
(a) Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: (a) BARASHERAFEIELHTE - IR

Recognition and Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial
Assets

The amendments to HKAS 39 permit an entity to reclassify
a non-derivative financial asset classified as held for trading,
other than a financial asset designated by an entity as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, out of the
fair value through profit or loss category if the financial assets
is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term, if specified criteria are met.

A debt instrument that would have met the definition of loans
and receivables (if it had not been required to be reclassified as
held for trading at initial recognition) may be classified out of
the fair value through profit or loss category or (if it had not
been designated as available for sale) may be classified out
of the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivables
category if the entity has the intention and ability to hold it
for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

In rare circumstances, financial assets that are not eligible
for classification as loans and receivables may be transferred
from the held-for-trading category to the available-for-sale
category or to the held-to-maturity category (in the case of
a debt instrument), if the financial asset is no longer held for

the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.

The financial asset shall be reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification and the fair value of the financial
asset on the date of reclassification becomes its new cost or
amortised cost, as applicable. The amendments to HKFRS 7
require extensive disclosures of any financial asset reclassified in
the situations described above. The amendments are effective
from 1 July 2008.

As the Group has not reclassified any of its financial instruments,
the amendments have had no impact on the financial position

or results of operations of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

()]

(9}

)]

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee
is granted rights, to the Group's equity instruments to be
accounted for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group
buys the instruments from another party, or the shareholders
provide the equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions
involving two or more entities within the Group. As the Group
currently has no such transactions, the interpretation has had
no impact on the financial position or results of operations
of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to service concession operators and
explains how to account for the obligations undertaken and
the rights received in service concession arrangements. No
member of the Group is an operator and, therefore, this
interpretation has had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or
a reduction in future contributions in relation to a defined
benefit scheme that can be recognised as an asset, including
situations when a minimum funding requirement exists. As
the Group has no defined benefit scheme, this interpretation
has had no effect on these financial statements.
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2.3Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective 23 EEHEREMRZEEBUBRE

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

R

va

AEBRRRZEMHHRETEABATEBM
BRERZHF] MEIERI BB IS ER -

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong BB B REAER BAFRNE BT
Financial Reporting Standards? F15R(EET) AP
HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27 Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time BB BHEER ERMBRELF 15
Amendments Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27 F1RREEG AR BARNE B BHRE

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an Investment
in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

F275(ERTAR)

SRR R BB CTES)
E27% kA RBIEE
fe/ﬁ —R—EiHE R A]

Entity or Associate! RIS B fE S & 2 A]
Zﬁzﬁ/ﬂwzﬂz HEN
HKFRS 2 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based BB RS %R BRI IREERE2R
Payment — Vesting Conditions and E25R(BAIAK) LR G BEEZ 5
Cancellations’ — BB IRI Rt
IR
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? BB RS LR REAHH
E35% (1BET)
HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial BB B REAER BBAIBIREERIE T
Instruments Disclosure: Improving EVLHCCHP:N) ERTARE - H#

Disclosures about Financial

ERTARE BRI

Instruments’
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’ BRI RELNESR AELH
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements’ BB LR HB#HZ 25
F15R(E1ET)
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs’ BB e &l EERA
F23% (FIERT)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial BB e &l A REBUH R
Statements? FE275(HERT)
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial EE G ERIE325% BB G ERIE325%
and Amendments Instruments: Presentation and HKAS 1 PEILACHEN) SHTA: 23

Presentation of Financial Statements

REE S ERIE 15

— Puttable Financial Instruments and BB#HZZZR

Obligations Arising on Liquidation’ —HEE M ITA
R ESE EE
ZIEFTA

Annual Report 2008
—EEN\FER




62

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd

BEEREEARAAF

Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—ERN\F+=A=+—H

2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(Cont’d)

HKAS 39 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and

HKAS 39
Amendments
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Distribution of Non-cash Assets to
Owners?

Transfer of Assets from Customers®

Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Embedded

Derivatives®
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2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Cont’d)

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued /Improvements
to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs
primarily with view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying
wording. Except for the amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009, the amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009 although there are separate transitional provisions for each

standard.

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008

3 Effective prospectively to transfers of assets from customers
received on or after 1 July 2009

e Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June
2008

* Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS 5,
HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS 18,
HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29,
HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40
and HKAS 41.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
it has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 8 and HKAS 1
(Revised) may result in changes in accounting policies, these new
and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact of the

Group's results of operations and financial position.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Cont’d)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(€))

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®)

(@)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint
control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified
as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as
held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost
of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 10%
5% to 19%
10% to 33%
9% to 20%

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Tools, furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each balance

sheet date.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont’d)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in the income statement in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction
and equipment pending installation. It is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of the property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance
sheet date.

Patents, licences and software

Purchased patents, licences and software are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of no more than 10 years.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)
Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as

incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TES5HERME(E)

(Cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from
the host contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in
the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policy
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and
losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the

amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified in any of the other two
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value, with gains or losses recognised as a
separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised
or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement. Interest and dividends earned
are reported as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the income statement as “Other income”
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments
are recognised in the income statement as “Impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the

available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such securities

are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 T E&5BURBIE (&)

(Cont’d)

Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such technigues include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effect interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of

the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts
are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not

reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. A provision for impairment is
made for an available-for-sale equity investment when there has
been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income

statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risk and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of

the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 Summary pf Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-
bearing borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing borrowings are initially stated at fair value less directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within “finance

costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the balance sheet, net
of transaction costs. On issuance of convertible notes, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The
carrying amount of the conversion option is not remeasured in
subsequent years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible notes based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 T E&5BUERBIE (&)

(Cont’d)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,

which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Provisions for installation services and product warranties granted
by the Group on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of installation services
rendered, repairs or returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TESTtBEHE(E)

(Cont’d)

Income tax FRfeHt

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is Frefi Bt E B REETIIE o FrEi Ty I ss
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to KR HWHBANER—HRESTRHEE
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly B ERCEE - AEERER -

in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods ERATHRACEBRREEE R ARRKRER
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid BREKENTHREE R ZEEETE -

to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary BERIBFERAERE RNEERREERAR
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of TREEM SRR AR E CHA TR EREE
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial o o

reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary FIEF IR B BT BLFT A e AR T i = R
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition e WMEEHEABNREFAERARS
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business (XBEHBRINEESEE  BRSGKI
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither YRS R A s ERE R Ak EE - Al
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and S1ERlER - &

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with e THEWBATZKRERMZERTEE
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal EFERER - MW IEG R E R ERE 2 R
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is M- MEREERA ARG EHE 2
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in BERT - BIS{ERIGR °

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2.4 TES5HERME(E)

(Cont’d)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs
that it is intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease

terms;

(c) interestincome, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(d) dividend income and compensation received from suppliers,
when the rights to receive were established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Cont’d)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the

rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income statement

in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Cont’d)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet dates. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of Mainland China subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at exchange rates
ruling at the balance sheet dates and their income statements
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences
are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in
equity relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Cont’d)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of Mainland China subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of Mainland China subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties (Cont’d)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased
out separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary services
are so significant that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are

discussed below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Where the actual or expected tax positions of the
relevant companies of the Group in future are different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charge in the period in which

such estimate has been changed.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the write-down amount involves management'’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the carrying value of the inventories and the write-
down charge/reversal in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

Product warranty and installation provisions

Product warranty and installation provisions are made based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of installation service rendered,
repairs or returns. The assessment of the provision amount involves
management’s judgements and estimates. \Where the actual outcome
or expectation in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying amount of the product warranty
and installation provisions and the provision amount charge/reversal
in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
Management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation for the Group’s property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to industry cycles.
The depreciation charge will increase where the useful lives are
less than the previously estimated useful lives, or management will
write off or write down obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of receivables

The Group maintains an allowance for estimated loss arising from
the inability of its debtors to make the required payments. The Group
makes its estimates based on the aging of its receivable balances,
debtor’s creditworthiness, and historical write-off experience. If the
financial condition of its debtors was to deteriorate so that the
actual impairment loss might be higher than expected, the Group
would be required to revise the basis of making the allowance.
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4.

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the
Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets.
No further geographical segment information is presented as over
90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers based in
Mainland China, and over 90% of the Group's assets are located
in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the

business segments are as follows:

(@) the washing machine business segment manufactures and
sells washing machines;

(b) the water heater business segment manufactures and sells

water heaters; and

(c) the corporate and others segment includes general corporate

income and expense items.
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4. Segment Information (Cont’d) 4, DEER(E)
Business segments ES 50 ]
The following table present revenue, profit and certain asset, liability TREJINBEZEZENFR_TEZTLF+H
and expenditure information for the Group’s business segments for ST HBLEFEASEEBY B2 WE &
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007. B LARETEE AEHASER -
Washing machine Water heater Corporate
business business and others Consolidated
AREER HEEEH AR )

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“ERNE CTTLF CRR\F CTTLF CERNE CTERLF CREN\F DFRRLR
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEgrn TR Tz  TEr  TEx  TER TR TAEx

Segment revenue: 7Rl -

Sales to external customers FSNERPEE 9,101,966 6,926,500 2,307,514 1,622,739 - - 11,409,480 8,549,239

Other revenue Hitliz 18,854 11,740 8,400 12,647 36 13 27,290 24,400

Total Bzt 9,120,820 6,938,240 2,315914 1,635,386 36 13 11,436,770 8,573,639

Segment results NEEE 166,226 271,525 61,176 86,388  (16,553)  (22,010) 210,849 335903

Interest income HMEWA 7,197 10,121

Finance costs BARK (15733)  (24,068)
Profit before tax Gl 202,313 321,956

Tax jia] (27,336)  (96,259)
Profit for the year EREA 174977 225,697
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4. Segment Information (Cont’d)

Business segments (Cont’d)

4. SEER(E)

KB DE(E)
Washing machine Water heater Corporate
business business and others Eliminations Consolidated
Bizit 3 HABEH ARRAM Hi &8

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008

2007

ZRR)\E CTTLE CRENF CTTLE CRENE CTTLF CRRN\E CTTLF CRRNE CTT(E

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Térn Tér TExn Tér TEx Téxr TEx Tiéx  TEn  Thx

Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Segment assets PREE 2,561,415 1,957,685 564,402 536256 37,920 33266 (60,529) (97,785) 3,103,208 2,429,422
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE 32,052 49,506
Cash and cash equivalents ReRALEEER 696,151 595,426
Other unallocated assets H KRR EE 529,365 591,858
Total assets BEffE 4,360,776 3,666,212
Seqment liablities PRERE 1,802,622 1567321 385204 283028 250,550 268,468  (60,529) (97,785) 2,377,937 2,021,032
Deferred tax liabilities BEERBAR 10,890 -
Tax payable JEfITE 54,831 104,269
Interest-bearing borrowings SEEE 162420 214,973
Convertible notes HARER - 169,344
Other unallocated liabilites Hp KPR EE 485,603 214,470
Total liabilities AREE 3,001,681 2,724,088
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4. Segment Information (Cont’d) 4. 2EER (&)
Business segments (Cont’d) RIS (E)
Washing machine Water heater Corporate
business business and others Consolidated
HREER YIS Rkt )

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
RERNE CTTLF CRR\F CTTLF CERNE CTTLEF BRI\ ZFTLR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

Térn  TEr TRz  TExr TR TEr  TEx  TEn

Other segment information ~ Hft2E&H

Depreciation and amortisation 78 R # 75,929 62,507 23,058 19,726 234 356 99,221 82,589
Other unallocated amounts EtAP S H 1M 151

99,362 82,740

Capital expenditure ERAY 39,824 76832 4,141 18,538 - 19 43965 95389
Other unallocated amounts kLR 58 58

44,023 95,447

Provision for BE R

obsolete and FEktE

slow-moving inventories 36,311 5,226 4,215 - - - 40,526 5,226
Product warranty EmRER

and installation provisions ZRERE 362,785 279774 75,615 56,974 - - 438400 336,748
Loss on disposall e,/

write-off of items of EN

property, plant e

and equipment, net LERTE 5,242 5,993 257 - - - 5,499 5,993
Impairment on At YRR E

other receivables 7,943 = = = = - 1,943 -
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. W& - H A R Wz
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net WMV AER s &5 HELEMZER
invoiced value of goods sold, net of value-added tax and after HE - HIRRIREN  REHEERE ST -

allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: e - B A R s o T
Group rEH
2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue Wz
Sale of washing machines SHE S 9,101,966 6,926,500
Sale of water heaters SHES 2K 2] 2,307,514 1,622,739
11,409,480 8,549,239

Other income and gains Hpl A R Wz

Bank interest income HRATA B UA 7,197 10,121
Government subsidies * BT Bh & 10,681 9,773
Compensation received Bt e RS (S
from suppliers 12,846 6,251
Consignment sale EmmrEAlA
commission income (Kt 14(a)
(note 14(a)) - 3,684
Gross rental income THREFZHE
in respect of land WA #B%E
and buildings 1,004 385
Others EAth 2,759 4,307
34,487 34,521
*  The amount received represented subsidies received from the * BReHEEFAESEEMEBRERAT
relevant authorities of the Qingdao Municipality for advanced B BE TR ] UK ES 2 = T T BR 58 1% B
research and development of washing machines and water B AR EMREETE@E BT
heaters and certain tax refunds received from the relevant EH 2 & TR

authorities of the Wuhan Municipality and Hefei Municipality
during the year.
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6. Profit Before Tax

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

BR B A A

REEZFRBATENFNR THIEIA -

2008 2007
—EENF ZETEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FER FiBT
Cost of inventories sold ~ &HFERA 8,007,412 5,991,925
Depreciation e 15 96,653 80,061
Recognition of prepaid TERTAS TR
land premiums 16 2,064 2,324
Amortisation of mIEERE
intangible assets * 17 645 355
Research and development A3t & B %% & A *
costs * 91,923 60,505
Auditors’ remuneration ZER RN N & 5,000 8,000
Employee benefit expense & E12FIFZ
(including directors’ (BREESME —ME8):
remuneration — note 8):
Wages and salaries ITERF < 714,725 422,978
Welfare =yl 24,689 19,905
Pension scheme RIRE TSR
contributions 102,407 39,521
841,821 482,404
Minimum lease payments it RIZFELFALY
under operating leases Z (X B KIB
in respect of land
and buildings 42,151 41,103
Provision for obsolete and iBFF [ 4 $E 17 & B 5
slow-moving inventories * 40,526 5,226
Product warranty and EmRERTERE
installation provisions 27 438,400 336,748
Loss on disposal/write-off  HHE& HisEHZE - KE
of items of property, MEEEIEE
plant and equipment, ZER R
net ** 5,499 5,993
Impairment of other E fth FE KRR ORI E * *
receivables ** 7,943 -
Foreign exchange bE = FRFRE
differences, net 34,100 25,990

*  The amortisation of intangible assets, research and development
costs and provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories
for the year are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

** The loss on disposal/write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment, net, and impairment of other receivables are
included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

*  FAEBPEEESE MIRELAEERUAR
BB HTFEREERGEARERIIA
[PHERARIA -

= HEWHYE  BERRERE ZEBE
JHERLA N B At FE U B BORUE B AR & W
RINATEMLERIA -
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7. Finance Costs 7. AAERA
Group rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Interest on borrowings ARAFAZHER

wholly repayable ZEEFR

within five years 15,077 11,039
Interest on convertible AR EEA S

notes (note 26) (Kizt26) 656 7,679
Interest on a deferred RIEERAER S

consideration payable (Kizt24)

(note 24) - 6,748
Total interest expense FEZ B 15,733 25,466
Less: Interest capitalised W BRERZHE - (1,398)

15,733 24,068
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8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

8. EEME

REERBEEMERFAAERRAES LT
BA ERRAD) REERREDIFE161FE

Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong BeESMeWT :
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group REE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHIT
Fees e 720 720
Other emoluments: Eme
Salaries, allowances and e 2K
benefits in kind BEWH = - -
Performance related FRIRIEAL
bonuses - -
Equity-settled share AR A& H 2 B AR v
option expense 3N - -
Pension scheme RIREBFTEIHR
contributions - -
720 720
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Cont’d)

(@) Independent non-executive directors:
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

8. EEM=(E)

(€))

BYFIITES:
FANTEILIFRTES RSN

2008 2007

—EBEBNEF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET T

Wu Yinong RINE 240 240
Liu Xiao Feng * 2zl * 240 126
Yu Hon To, David * BEE* 240 126
Lam Kin Kau, Mark **  MRgEIk** - 114
Fung Hoi Wing, Henry ** )48+ - 114
720 720

& Mr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon To, David, were
appointed as directors of the Company on 21 June
2007.

**  Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, and Mr. Fung Hoi Wing, Henry,
resigned as directors of the Company on 21 June
2007.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2007: Nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Cont’d) 8. EEM=(~&E)
(b) Executive directors: (b) HITES:
Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension
and benefits related option scheme Total
Fees inkind  bonuses  expense contributions remuneration
e
EER URALEE 2 Bird

e BUANE  RERA BREXE HERR  WelE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
THAR TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

2008 —E2EN\E
Yang Mian Mian iR = = - - - -
Wu Ke Song B = = - - - _
Liang Hai Shan 21 = = - - - -
Cao Chun Hua BEE = 147 - - - 147
Cui Shao Hua EhE = = - - - -
Sun Jing Yan * BRE* = 135 = = = 135
_ 282 - - - 282
2007 i35 o :3
Yang Mian Mian Dlre = - - - _ _
Wu Ke Song B = - - - _ _
Liang Hai Shan 21 - - - _ _ _
Cao Chun Hua 5% - = - - _ _
Cui Shao Hua EbE - - - - _ _
Sun Jing Yan * BRE* - - _ _ _ _
Chai Yong Sen ** BEKFR* = = - - - _
Song Chun Guang ** REJ** = - - - - _
*  Mr. Sun Jing Yan was appointed as a director of the * EREAER-ZEEF=RA/\BEZE
Company on 8 March 2007. PN/ ==
** Mr. Chai Yong Sen and Mr. Song Chun Guang resigned *OBKBRRERREARER _FTTLFZ
as directors of the Company on 15 February 2007. ATHB#FERRAIES -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FABEERIT I MENR B RNETMEH 2
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. ZHE o
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees 9. IEEETMES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two FANhEERTHEEREMBES(ZES L
director (2007: one), details of whose remuneration are set out in F:—F) EHES2MSFBEHR XM
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining three 8 FNMTN=R(ZFTLF : UR)IFEEH
(2007: four) non-director, highest paid employees for the year are S EE ZEFFIBIT ¢
as follows:
Group rEH
2008 2007
—gENE —ETE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHBT
Salaries, allowances and e EMEREDN G
benefits in kind 3,765 3,189

Performance related bonuses  RIRTEAL - -
Equity-settled share option VARR A 4 H 2 B AR i

expense X - _
Pension scheme contributions R 5T 2K 31 46
3,796 3,235
The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose FEZERTWEEMSETIECTHEEAN 2
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: AET -
Number of employees
EBEAH
2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T p 3
HK$2,000,001 to 2,000,001/ 7t 22,500,000 7T
HK$2,500,000 _ 1
HK$2,500,001 to 2,500,001/ T 23,000,000 7T
HK$3,000,000 1 _
3 4
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10. Tax 10. B I8

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year (2007: Nil).

Tax on profits assessable in Mainland China has been calculated
at the applicable PRC corporate income tax (“CIT"”) rates. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments
including a reduction in CIT and a full exemption from CIT for two
years starting from their first profit-making year followed by a 50%
reduction in CIT for the next consecutive three years.

FA AEBRYETMRERTEZERBE
Ao AT EEEEENGSHBEE( 2T
FE) -

KRB R ERTUE M 2 IR - ThiRiE P
CEAGHR(EEAERDERHREGAE - A
SEETHBARARZANARERE &
R ®EPTSE - AR B BEERNFE R
AAMEFEEEBRREEMEH  WNHER
BB = FREMPS0%BEMSH -

Group REE
2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Current — Mainland China BN HR—rh B0 K fE 24,010 116,160
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHBBEEE (27,815) =
Deferred (note 28) BRI (Hf7t28) 31,141 (19,901)
Total tax charge for the year FRFIES HAE%E 27,336 96,259

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax
rates, are as follows:

BARBRAREWE R B RERDERER ZE
EREFERBANEN 2 HE - BIRER
MEAE 2 HIBE S H 2 Bk - ARE AT R (B)
EERE)BERB R 2 WK
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B ERFR ML
31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H
10. Tax (Cont’d) 10. BiE (&)
Group - 2008 rEE-=FENF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B REARE @t
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TRET TR FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BHADER/ (B18) (15,131) 217,444 202,313
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEEREFE 2HB (2,497) 16.5 54,361 25.0 51,864 25.6
Adjustments in respect of current E A7 2 BVEEEI B IEL
tax of previous periods 2 - - (27,815) (12.8)  (27.815) (13.7)
Effect of withholding tax at AEEHEHB AR DR
10% on the distributable BRR10%HERAE
profits of the Group’s PRC LBz # 8
subsidiaries 10,890 (72.0) - - 10,890 5.4
Income not subject to tax FEARBA (363) 2.4 - = (363) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax A HFFI S 2,860 (18.9) 5,329 2.5 8,189 4.0
Tax losses not recognised AERTEBRE - - 31,505 14.5 31,505 15.6
Tax exemption IR - - (46,934) (21.6)  (46,934) (23.2)
Tax charge at the Group’s BASE ERHEHE
effective rate ZHAR 10,890 (72.0) 16,446 7.6 27,336 13.5
Group — 2007 REFE - —TTHF
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B B AR w@st
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THL THT THL
Profit/(loss) before tax BHATRR/ (E18) (32,320) 354,276 321,956
Tax at the statutory tax rate RAEEREFE A (5,656) 175 116,911 33.0 111,255 34.6
Income not subject to tax FERBIA (723) 2.2 - - (723) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax R/ MFHFHX 6,379 (19.7) 91,136 25.7 97,515 30.2
Tax losses not recognised AEARHIAEE - - 1,289 0.4 1,289 0.4
Tax exemption MIERE = - (113,077) (31.9)  (113,077) (35.1)
Tax charge at the Group’s BRASEZ ERHEHE
effective rate ZBEZH - - 96,259 272 96,259 29.9
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BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=-A=1—H

10. Tax (Cont’d)

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “New CIT Law"), which
is effective from 1 January 2008. Under the New CIT Law, the CIT
rate applicable to domestic companies will decrease from 33% to
25% from 1 January 2008. According to HKAS 12, deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled. The change in CIT rate has had no significant
impact on the results and financial position of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008.

11. Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the

Parent

Of the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the parent of
HK$152,183,000 (2007: HK$172,131,000), a loss of HK$25,262,000
(2007: loss of HK$31,882,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (note 31(b)).

10. BLIR(4&)

11.

RIEZLF=A+ A 2BARKKRKE
#ERBEAERBTIA(THEERMETOE]) -

—EENF-H-HREM - RBHFEEAMA
BRE BACEZERCERSHEE-F
ZN\F— A —HEA33%[ME25% © REERE
BRERIF125E - BIEMIAEEMRELERIAR
BEREREENEEARHRR I AREAHEX
AHE - bEMBREEHHAEHEHRE_FTF
NEFE+T A=+ R IEFEZEERFTBHR
WEERTE -

B RAIREFEABMSLER

EREBRAAREREAEBRBGASEE &
152,183,000/ 7c( =T £ F : 172,131,000
YSIT) R 0 B51825,262,0008 T0( — T L4 ¢
[E51831,882,000/8 7T ) B AE AR & 2 B Bk A
BRIE (FIE31()) ©

12. Dividends 12. R 5
2008 2007
—sENE —RtE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Interim dividend — HK2 cents  FRHANR 8 — BTG
per ordinary share ZETLF  E)
(2007: Nil) 39,054 -
Special interim dividend — R HANR S — &A%
HK2 cents per ordinary T2
share (2007: Nil) —TTHF E) 39,054 =
78,108 -
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31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

13. Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity

Holders of the Parent

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, adjusted to reflect the interest on the convertible
notes, where applicable. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

A diluted earnings per share amount for the year ended 31 December
2008 has not been disclosed as the convertible notes outstanding
during the year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings
per share for the year.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

13. B FAIRERFEABLEERERN

SREARNZ & BRES A ERRES
BN P IR A B BT BB 2 AR
FHYGHE -

BRETRN 2 SBIREY AR EBRER
ﬁ/\ﬂﬁfﬁiWiﬁ?’ﬁ‘u(WEFJWL‘A&B%T#HQ%TF%U
B(@Em))stE - stEMAZ AR mEFS
%&Eﬂ%ﬁ’\\ﬁr”hﬂxﬁﬁﬁfUZEWE?‘ﬂ & i

REE - ARBRERARETT sk L i pr A B
SBE R R E B B E BT 2 BT
BHE

HRFEARRLRZ T REEEEFAZRE
AANELARBEYE RUBRBEEE_T
ENFT_HA=+—HILFEZE8RETRTN
B

AESRERRESERN 2 EENT

on:
2008 2007
—EENF T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BIT
Earnings B F
Profit attributable to ordinary AR EESREREF
equity holders of the parent Z BRI AR
as used in the basic earnings FrE ARG A
per share calculation 152,183 172,131
Interest on convertible notes Iz &N 656 7,679
Profit attributable to ordinary Rt AT IR =BT B AT
equity holders of the parent Z BRI AR
before interest on FrB ARG A
convertible notes 152,839 179,810
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13. Earnings per Share Attributable to Equity
Holders of the Parent (Cont’d)
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B.ELXAREFEABRBLEEREF
(4)

Number of shares

RBEE
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Shares B4
Weighted average number ARGt ESIRERET
of ordinary shares ZERNBEBEITERR
in issue during the year N5 28
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation 1,948,822,406 1,852,381,269

Effect of dilution — weighted —#EER 2 — LR

average number of ordinary  ANFEFEEL :
shares:
Share options et — 2,596,196
Convertible notes GIEAY 27 4,657,534 94,444,444
4,657,534 97,040,640
Total FEE 1,953,479,940 1,949,421,909

14. Related Party Transactions

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year.

(@) The Company'’s subsidiaries, Qingdao Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier
Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent Electronic
Co., Ltd., Chongging Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Haier
Drum Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd.,
Wuhan Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Chongqging Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales Co., Ltd.
had the following material transactions with Haier Affiliates:

14.BEALTRS

RUSHBRER BB HRZWEALRS
5 AEERENEBEALTGETUTEA
%5 -

(@) ARARMBARESSBAAXEARR
A EEBRSRAKKEERAR - A
BEAXEAERAR - fhlUmIEEERE
BARAR - FLmIEEEREEEFS
[RAR  BEESRAXRKERAR - EH
BEE(FB)AKKEARLR E5E@
RERREARRR - B BB
BEAAKB[ARDA - BEBRBKER
BERAF EEBRAKRERARARE
EEMERHEARAFEEABBAL
BETATEARS :
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31 December 2008

—EE\F+ZA=+—H

14. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d) 14.BEATRZ (&)

(@) (Cont'd) (@) (#&)
Group REH
2008 2007
—EENF T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FTER FAT
Export sale of washing H 1 S TR
machines and water R EOKEE
heaters 0) 1,055,650 846,869
Domestic sale of washing B X 51 55 AR TR A
machines and water &=
heaters (ii) 2,732,035 480,068
Purchase of raw materials  #REERHE (iii) 7,055,462 6,151,475
Printing and packaging ENRI R BB W
fee expenses (%) 26,340 24,767
Mould charges BEEYH (v) 206,692 100,524
Utility service fee expenses AR E X H () 60,430 51,714
Logistics charges Wi B 2 (vii) 378,761 281,243
Promotion fee expenses SEEBYH (viii) 124,099 92,432
Other service fee expenses  EM R E S (ix) 161,101 89,691
Interest expenses FEZH (x) 14,738 11,043
Interest income FEMA (x) 4,848 5,095
Trademark licence RZERES
fee expenses (xi) - 40,195
Consignment sale FmREReBA
commission income (xii) - 3,684
Sale of gift products HEE M (xiii) 6,402 5,644
Notes: MtaE -
() The export sale of washing machines and water heaters () MEREEZHBAREREEEEE

EXxARAR(SHEREZ D
O 565 YR Ko 2K 22 THARIE AR E 10
ERHEZ AR EERSRERE
EHERT(TBBEKREEEZ
15% (ZEZ+F :25%)) 2 =58
MH#ETT o

were made to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Electrical”), a subsidiary of Haier Investment, at selling
prices representing differences between the selling prices
of washing machines mutually agreed and the selling
expenses of Haier Electrical not exceeding 1.5% (2007:
2.5%) of the selling prices of washing machines.
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31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=A=1—H

14.BEALTRF ()

(@) (Cont'd) (@) (#&)

14. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(i)

(iii)

During the year, the domestic sale of washing machines
and water heaters were made at unit prices not less than
the average selling prices of the same type of products
sold to the independent top five customers of the Group
in 2007.

In last year, the domestic sale of washing machines and
water heaters were determined at rates mutually agreed
between the related parties.

The purchase of raw materials were made at prices not
higher than the consolidated and integrated tender and
bidding price plus a commission fee of not exceeding
2.6%.

Hiat - (&)

(i)

(iii)

FR - RN EK=E 2 BAHE T
BIMERAAEE T LFEAAN
UEPHERBERCFHEEZE
BEHE -

EE - AREREUKSE 2 BAHE T
ZREATHABEZREXREE -

HERMTIZTE N5 %M”Tﬁ
ﬁZf?’iT BINTHBiE2.6% 2 A4

(iv) The printing and packaging fee expenses were charged (iv) ENRI R BEE T W TR TN ER &
based on terms no less favourable than those offered =R ARRETE
by independent third parties.

(v) Moulds were charged with reference to the average (v) BABXZLSEFHMGHIREL
market tender and bidding price plus actual administrative B B INERITIRK AGTE ©
costs.

(vi) Utility service fee expenses were charged based on the (vi) ARERBEXEHRIRBERETEER
state-prescribed prices plus actual administrative costs. SINEBBRITERKAGHE ©

(vii) Logistics charges were charged based on terms no less (vii) MREXZHDETBENELE=F1R
favourable than those offered by independent third 2 ERETHE ©
parties

(viii) Promotion fee expenses were charged based on 1.2% (vii) EEE X TS EERM R K

(ix)

(xi)

of the domestic sales of washing machines and water
heaters of the Group.

Other service fee expenses were charged with reference
to actual costs incurred.

Interest expenses and income were determined with
reference to the standard rates published by the People’s
Bank of China.

Trademark license fee expenses were charged at a
nominal consideration of RMB1 during the year (2007:
0.8% of certain sales made by Qingdao Haier Washing
Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd.,
Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., and Chongging Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd.).

(ix)

(xi)

FRZ BINHEZ1.2%5HE °

H AR B B Y B
AHE -

MEHRBATI2ZH B ARRT
BB ERREE -

FR Fﬂ“ﬁi‘ﬁﬁ\,\iﬁﬂﬁz%ﬁ_tﬁ
F/\E%m(:ggti BEEE
R ER AR ~ LT \\thlqﬁ%
*““ﬁrﬁ 7l AHE&E@&EM&W&
A EEBRREREXKKAR DT
&E%iﬁﬁiﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁZ%ﬁﬁ
B0.8% 2 LR )EHE ©
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31 December 2008
T N\F+=-A=+—H

14. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(a)

14.FBEANLTRS (&

(Cont’d) (@) (#&)

Notes: (Cont'd) Miat - (&)

(xi) Consignment sale commission income in 2007 was (i) —TFT+LF2EmNERSIKRATS
determined at 2% of the turnover of the sales of the RIFGARE ZMBRAIR=FTN
outstanding inventories of washing machines and water FHZA=+—HMER Z AR
heaters owned by subsidiaries of Haier Investment at 31 HKBERTEHE 22 FE/H2%E
December 2006. E o

(xiii) The sale of gift products were made at selling prices not (xiii) $HEAS MR DR RN/ REE A LR
higher than those sold by Haier Affiliates to independent BUE=FHETHE 2 EEET -
third parties.

As at the balance sheet date, Haier Corp provided corporate (b) RE&EEB BREBERARENEBAQ A

guarantees up to RMB143,000,000 (2007: RMB201,000,000) BREBEVBEERREEAA SR M

(equivalent to HK$162,419,000 (2007: HK$214,973,000)) to Bl —HHPREARRITRA 2B

Haier Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a subsidiary B) Rt &R % A R ®143,000,00070( =

of Haier Corp and a financial institute approved by the People’s T+ F: AR¥201,000,0007T ) (48

Bank of China, for loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries FE R #162,419,0008 T( =TT L F :

of the Group. 214,973,000 7T )) 2 A AR - ERA

SEETWBARBRERFEE 2 ER -

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (0 AEEFZEEABZFH :

2008 2007
—ZEENF ZETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T

Short term employee benefits %2 Hi{E B &7 3,916 2,819

Post-employment benefits EHERES 12 12

Total compensation paid to ENEEEEAB 2 HHERE

key management personnel 3,928 2,831

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
8 to the financial statements.

Except for item (), the above related party transactions also
constitute continuing connected transactions or connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2008
ZET)\F+ZA=+—H
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 1% - BERZHE
Group rEH
Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures  vehicles in progress Total
IR K&

BT RERME RKE nE  ERIRE et
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TERT TERx TR TR TERT

31 December 2008 —2Z/\Ft+t=ZA=1+-AH
At 1 January 2008: RZZZN\F—-A—-8:

Cost A 512,199 850,242 20,532 4,536 6,232 1,393,741

Accumulated depreciation R HTE (134,007)  (491,465)  (6,403)  (3,630) - (635,505)

Net carrying amount REFE 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
Cost at 1 January 2008, net of R=ZZ/\F—A—H

accumulated depreciation LA BB RRHTE 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
Additions AE 79 10,669 527 753 31,092 43,120
Disposals/write-off e /HisH (1)  (7,988) (v)] = = (8,041)
Depreciation provided ENTERRB

during the year (25,817)  (67,263) (3,474) (99) - (96,653)
Transfers L2 7,814 15,824 488 - (24,126) -
Exchange realignment B A% 23,198 21,582 818 65 479 46,142
Cost at 31 December 2008, R=-ZEF\FF+_A=+—H

net of accumulated R BR Rat

depreciation e 383,435 331,601 12,466 1,625 13,677 742,804
At 31 December 2008: RZBENE+ZA=+—H:

Cost B 551,909 900,596 22,745 5,567 13,677 1,494,494

Accumulated depreciation 25E (168,474)  (568,995)  (10,279) (3.942) - (751,690)

Net carrying amount REFE 383,435 331,601 12,466 1,625 13,677 742,804
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31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont'd) 15. Y% - RERZE(E)
Group (Cont'd) REE(E)
Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor  Construction

Buildings  machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
I8 KA

BT W RS REE AE O ERIE @5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000
TAR TAR TAT TAT TAT TAT

31 December 2007 “ZELF+-A=1-H
At 1 January 2007: RZZZ+F-A-A0:

Cost AR 382,174 782,861 12,266 3,589 96,143 1,277,033

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (107,062)  (462,469) (4,910) (2,562) - (577,003)

Net carrying amount REFE 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
Cost at 1 January 2007, NZEZ+F—A—H

net of accumulated ZHAR  BEARRE

depreciation e 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
Additions NE 3,738 27,971 5,202 843 57,693 95,447
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (6,189) (1) = = (6,200)
Depreciation provided FRHERRE

during the year (18,702)  (58,223) (2,107) (1,029) - (80,061)
Transfers 20 95,475 51,892 2,958 - (150,325) =
Exchange realignment 0 5, % 22,569 22,934 731 65 2,721 49,020
Cost at 31 December 2007, W-ZZ+&+-A=+—H

net of accumulated LR - EAIGR RE

depreciation e 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
At 31 December 2007: RZETLFE+-A=1—H:

Cost XA 512,199 850,242 20,532 4,536 6,232 1,393,741

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (134,007)  (491,465) (6,403) (3,630) - (635,505)

Net carrying amount REFE 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
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31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=-A=1—H

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2008, certain of the Group’s buildings with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$268,480,000 (2007:
HK$267,009,000) did not have building ownership certificates
registered under the names of the respective subsidiaries of the
Company.

With respect to the above properties, on 24 February 2005 and
20 September 2006, Haier Corp issued two undertakings to the
Company, pursuant to which Haier Corp agreed to provide other
suitable properties to the Group to ensure the operations of certain
subsidiaries of the Company operating in Qingdao and Wuhan and
indemnify the Group against any losses arising from the above
defective property title issue and for any moving cost/loss incurred,
if, for any reason, the respective subsidiaries were not able to
continue to use the buildings before the related acquisition and
registration procedures have been completed. The aggregate net
book value of the Group’s buildings indemnified by Haier Corp as
at 31 December 2008 amounted to approximately HK$176,874,000
(2007: HK$169,851,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled to lawfully
and validly occupy and use the buildings for its daily operations,
notwithstanding the fact that the related building ownership
certificates have not yet been obtained.

15. % - BERRE(E)

RZZEZENF+ZA=1+—8 AEERLK
T /¥ 18 %) £268,480,000/ T( =TT + 4 :
267,009,000 7T ) 2 & TEF I L AR A A&
HEAMB AR 2 ZRERZBHEREF o

LadmEnSs  RZETRF-_A=-+HHAH
R=ZZZXFEANA=+H BEEEARFAN
ARIEEMIBA Bt BREE QAR
= WEMEB AR NEFEMIEHEEEE AR
BRELEF TRATZEFRAEFLEES -

AEREEARKRASEREEMEEY
¥ URRARARESREELSE 2 & TH
BARIIAEER  WREASEERE LR
B8 #E R 2 2 (BRI R AT R B 2 (A iRE
KA BK - RZEENF+_A=+—8"

BREEARBEASEZEFRERFED
£176,874,000/8L( —FZ+4F : 169,851,000
BT e

BERA  BENRRGENEHERS &
A EEEEA AR R RS T
TREEE -
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31 December 2008
—ETN\F+-A=+—H

16. Prepaid Land Premiums 16. TS L itb 3K
Group rEH
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHTT
Carrying amount at 1 January W—A—HAZKAE 79,850 76,926
Recognised during the year FFER (2,064) (2,324)
Exchange realignment bE X 4,921 5,248
Carrying amount R+ZA=+—HZEKAEE
at 31 December 82,707 79,850
Current portion included SPAFENFIE « £E
in prepayments, deposits R E b EWBRR Z mBEb o
and other receivables (2,238) (2,105)
Non-current portion IERE D 80,469 77,745
All leasehold land of the Group is under medium term leases and AEBEEZHEE L HEPIHANOEE - B
is situated in Mainland China. FAFR B ARE ©
As at 31 December 2008, certain parcels of the Group’s land RZZZNFE+A=+—08 ' AEBERHEH
with an aggregate unamortised prepaid land premium amount TAff L FRAAEEH) 510,664,000/8 T0( —ZEZ+
of approximately HK$10,664,000 (2007: HK$52,215,000) did not % : 52,215,000 7T ) 2 & T | £+ b 9F & AR
have land use right certificates registered under the names of NEIESABEMB AR 2 BEE R 2 THFEAE
the respective subsidiaries of the Company, all of which (2007: FOBREBARER=ZTENFEF+ A=+
HK$14,995,000) was indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December —HREHEEH(ZZZ+4F:14,995,0007T)
2008. Details of the undertakings granted by Haier Corp to the HWE - BREERRRARBIRE@EAEEZ
Company in relation to such title issue are set out in note 15 to B A AR BIE L # G 2 SE B E R B iRk
the financial statements. =
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31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=-A=1—H

17. Intangible Assets 17. B E=E
Group
Patents,
licences and
software
REE
57
S RERERY
HK$'000
FExT
31 December 2008 —EENF+=A=+—H
At 1 January 2008: RZZEENF—H—Q:
Cost B 2,596
Accumulated amortisation R (1,112)
Net carrying amount ARTEDFE 1,484
Cost at 1 January 2008, RZZEZNF—-H—H
net of accumulated ZEAR 0 BB
amortisation RETEH 1,484
Additions during the year FRRE 903
Amortisation provided FAEIHEE
during the year (645)
Exchange realignment b 5, AR 94
Cost at 31 December 2008, R-ZTTZN\F+-_A=+—H
net of accumulated RS - B A0BR
amortisation AT 1,836
At 31 December 2008: RZZEZENF+_A=+—0:
Cost %N 3,672
Accumulated amortisation EFTEH (1,836)
Net carrying amount BRE A 1,836
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—ETN\F+-A=+—H

17. Intangible Assets (Cont’d) 17. B EE (&)
Patents,
licenses and
software
=5
REETHRE BN
HK$'000
FH&TT
31 December 2007 —EE+F+A=+—H
At 1 January 2007: RZZEZELF—H—Q:
Cost B AR 2,428
Accumulated amortisation RET (694)
Net carrying amount BREFAE 1,734
Cost at 1 January 2007, RZEZTLFE—-HF—H
net of accumulated ZRAS - B0k
amortisation RS 1,734
Amortisation provided F NI
during the year (355)
Exchange realignment bE X % 105
Cost at 31 December 2007, R-ZTZt+tF+-_HA=+—H
net of accumulated ZRAS - BBR
amortisation Rt 1,484
At 31 December 2007: R-ZZBZLF+A=+—81:
Cost B AR 2,596
Accumulated amortisation EFTE (1,112)
Net carrying amount BREFHE 1,484
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18. Interests in Subsidiaries 18. B~ Al RE =

Company PN
2008 2007
—ZEEN\F —ETLF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET T
Unlisted investments, at cost  FF_ET#RE @ LAk AR 1,982,417 1,982,417
Due from subsidiaries FEUSBfT /88 A B 5k 163,171 163,575
2,145,588 2,145,992

Impairment for unlisted I ET iR &R ME (A7)

investments (note) (2,356) (2,356)
2,143,232 2,143,636

Note: An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted
investments with a carrying amount of HK$2,356,000
because the relevant subsidiaries had suffered losses for
many years.

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in the
Company's non-current assets and non-current liabilities of
HK$163,171,000 (2007: HK$163,575,000) and HK$85,088,000
(2007: HK$81,060,000), respectively, are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of
these amounts due from and to subsidiaries approximate to their

fair values.

B BREENE AR ZERLIRER &
2 R BRE (82,356,000 T 2 & T 3E £
MREERBE °

AR RRBERBEERIETRBAGB 2 EHR KR
JE A BT /8 A B3 IE 9 51163,171,000/8 L (=&
T+ 4 : 163,575,000 7t ) % 85,088,000/ JT
(ZZZT 4 : 81,060,000/8 7T ) AEKF « ¢
BRIEETEERSN ZFEERESHEA
AIFEZ BREEEE A FEES -
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31 December 2008
—ERN\F+=A=+—H

18. MY 1 Rl Az (45

TEMBRRZERAT -

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of

Place of

registration and

Nominal value
of registered

equity directly
attributable to

Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
FATEE
£ AE I St B AMELEE EiERER D FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HE 5
Qingdao Haier Washing PRC/ RMB 150,000,000 - 93.44 Manufacture and sale
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China ~ AK#150,000,0007C of washing machines
FEERAKHARATR B/ B AR HERHE SRR
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,000,000 - 60 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  AR#48,000,0007T washing machines
BLmIEEERERFRA HED /B AR HEE R E R
Hefei Haier Washing Machine PRC/ RMB12,000,000 - 98.69 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  AR#12,000,0007T washing machines
EEERAKKEERAR B AR B KR HEEE R SHE K
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 94.49 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China AR#10,000,0007C washing machines
SERAERAKKAR AR B/ B AR HERHE SRR
Chongging Haier Washing PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  AK%25,000,0007T washing machines
BEBREREARDA HE /B AR HEE R E AR
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent PRC/ RMB34,200,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale of
Electronic Co., Ltd. * Mainland China AE#34,200,0007T accessories for electrical
BLTIEEEREEETARAR  FEHEARE appliances
HERIHE SRt
Qingdao Haier Electronics PRC/ RMB5,000,000 50 30 Sale of washing machines
Sales Co., Ltd. * Mainland China AR 5,000,0007C and water heaters
EFEERERHEARA HE B AR SHE R R Bk 28
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing PRC/ USD24,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of

Mainland China
B B A RE

Machine Co., Ltd. *** 24,000,0003 7T
BRRBEE(EE) KKK

BRAF] =

washing machines

EEREERXE
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ZEE)\F+ZA=+—H

18. Interests in Subsidiaries (Cont’d) 18. B A A== (&)

Place of

registration and

Nominal value
of registered

Percentage of
equity directly
attributable to

Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
AT EHE
a8 IR & 2 3 2 AMEAEE EiERERDL FTEEK
Direct Indirect
HE BT
Qingdao Haier Drum Washing PRC/ UsD12,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China 12,000,000 7T washing machines
BRERREARBER R~ B B AR HE R E AR
Qingdao Economy and Technology PRC/ RMB120,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Development Zone Haier Mainland China  AR#120,000,0007T water heaters
Water Heater Co., Ltd. *** R, EIARE EERHERKES
B BB ERER
HUKBERAE =
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB50,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China  AEK#50,000,0007T water heaters
HEBRAVKRER AT ** o K B HE R ERKES
Chongging Haier Water Heater PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China  AK%10,000,0007T water heaters
EEBRAKBERAR B/ B AR A o SHE HUK SR

* RBREIEEEMATINMD A ERF]

*  Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
under PRC law.

**  Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law. > REBEPEDEEZMABREEAF
ek RIBRBUARE MR EERE -

*** Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC
law.

ERMAINZARBMBARNEERREER

BREFARFE 2 ¥ENARTEBEEFE
EHD2MBRF - EERR - w5 H MK

BRARAKSEHARTERITE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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19. Inventories 19. 78
Group rEH
2008 2007
=LY —TRtE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
Raw materials R 37,575 34,399
Work in progress R 7,983 556
Finished goods RURK i 261,643 623,579
307,201 658,534
20. Trade and Bills Receivables 20. EREZRARERE
The Group normally allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 REE—RETHESEP TH30E90H 2 F
days to its trade customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict B HR o ZN 5 [E B ) H R (BB FE AR SRAE R Bk
control over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are HEER MeafEREEe TR BiEeR -
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables are JEUE 5 BR R TEHHIE ©
non-interest-bearing.
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet REE B RKE ZRR(EMNGRERE) 2 Rk
date, based on the invoice date and net of provisions, and the BEAMOTREREER ZERINT ¢

balance of the bills receivable are as follows:

Group NEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT

Trade receivables: FEUE S BRK
Within 1 month 1MEAA 909,251 404,318
1 to 2 months 12218 A 7,008 64,244
2 to 3 months 2Z231@A 151,660 40,950
Over 3 months FBE3(EA 137,910 54,174
1,205,829 563,686
Bills receivable eSS 1,192,590 783,340
2,398,419 1,347,026
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20. Trade and Bills Receivables (Cont’d) 20. EWE ZERFREE (&

The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

W EW R BREZ EWRE B RA N ZE 2R
DATUR -

Group rEH
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHAIT
Neither past due nor impaired K18 & KR {E 2,260,509 1,292,852
Less than 1 year past due B ER DR 137,910 54,174
2,398,419 1,347,026

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables are amounts
due from Haier Affiliates amounting to HK$799,081,000 (2007:
HK$219,957,000), which are repayable on similar credit terms to
those offered to the major customers of the Group. Further details
of the sales to these related parties are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SR80 B T SR A 2 B TR BT B0 4 R A
B EEEN -

EARERREEBEFIBES LR ANEEHE
BREBREZBIEFAR REBELR
ARBEERRB A ZE B HRE LR E R
B AREEERYBERNES) MAEHH
HARRBAA 2R o AL 7% F AR
FAEMERRSIEMEERT

NEE 2 EE 5 8RR 1R 6 15 FE WO B i
JB A FIE 5799,081,000/8 TT( = BT L4 ¢
219,957,000 7T) * K BEKREETERF 4
TAEBEE ZEERRER - BHERZEH
A TEREE 2 EMEFH B SN B RERMT 14 -
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21. Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables 21. FE{{FIE » Z& Rk HAit EUERRX

Group Company
REE ZA/NE
2008 2007 2008 2007

“EENE ~—TTLF —RRNE —TTLH
HKS$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000

FE T FAET TERT FAET
Prepayments TEfFRIA 37,754 51,069 468 695
Deposits e 698 304 698 304
Other receivables H th FEU AR TR VAKEL] 126,882 - -
109,787 178,255 1,166 999
Impairment E (7,943) = = =
101,844 178,255 1,166 999
The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables Hib EUERFORBERE 2 SBIT -
are as follows:
Group Company
rEE b /NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENFE —TT+F ZBENF _—TTLF
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FERT FAT FTER FAT
At 1 January Rn—HA—H - = - =
Impairment loss recognised ERBEEE 7,943 = - =
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 7,943 = - =
Except for other receivables amounting to HK$7,943,000 included B _E 3t 45 BR PB4 2 E b FE LR AR 3R 7,943,000%
in the above balance, none of the above assets is either past due or JoHN - bl B ESEE A2 RE o B
impaired. Other than the aforementioned impaired receivables, the ZEREZ BIRERFRIN - LAl ET B IE 28
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables 15 & /2 B NG R BRR R4 6% 2 IR BR TR B ©
for which there was no recent history of default.
Included in the Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables AREBEZEMNFKIE - e REMERRRETE
are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to HK$ 13,438,000 FEU G RR B B A +5R18 /313,438,000 T (=&
(2007: HK$65,942,000), which are unsecured, interest-free and are T4 1 65,942,000/ 70) © ZCE AEEE
repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the prepayments, RERIZBHER - BNKIE - e REME
deposits and other receivables approximate to their fair values. WERR Z BREEEE A FEEE °
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22. Cash and Cash Equivalents 2. RERREEHEEH

Group Company

A& E PN |

2008 2007 2008 2007

—EENFE —TT+F ZZBENF _—TTLF
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FET FHIT FER FHIT
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTEEER 394,289 470,754 9,707 18,731
Time deposits aEERER N 301,862 124,672 149,381 124,672
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EMEEE 696,151 595,426 159,088 143,403

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances and time
deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted
to HK$537,037,000 (2007: HK$452,041,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirement of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks or financial institutions with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximate to their fair values.

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are deposits of
approximately HK$514,317,000 (2007: HK$367,853,000) placed
with Haier Finance, a financial institution approved by the People’s
Bank of China. The interest rate on these deposits was 0.36% per
annum. Further details of the interest income attributable to the
deposits placed with Haier Finance are set out in note 14(b) to the
financial statements.

REZER  AEBUARE(TAREDIIEZ
W& RIRTTHERR LA R E BB 7 31 /3537,037,000/%
TL(ZZEZ £ : 452,041,000 7C) - ARER
EEBARAEMEY - EREFBIARE 2N
EEEEREE  SERMESESETE) A
SEAEBERIETINEEH 2 RITHAR
KA EH MBS o

FRI|IT2ESRIBEEARITERMNRREH
FREREAE - MHEHRFEFRFAEE 2B
RREFRMARNF—BE=EAZTEF
FKHE - RAA R R B BT SR R BRER A B - R
TTRBF RN L EAMRRLCE 2 EER TR
THEREE  REMRESFEER ZREE
HEERNFERR

AEEZESRRSEEBEE BETRANER
BF 7% 2 17 50 #9514,317,000/8 T(—BE L 4F ¢
367,853,000/ L) - RIS AT R ARIR
TTRA 2 EATEHeRE - ZETF 2 FFIEA0.36
B - BETHRNEBRT K2 ERZHBRAE
b FFIB R B IS IRER M EE14(b) ©
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23. Trade Payables 23. ENEZ RN
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the balance sheet REZRAENE SRR ZBRREEZFHST
date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: N
Group FERE
2008 2007
—BENEF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Trade payables: JERTE SR
Within 1 month MEA A 1,015,909 441,094
1 to 2 months 12218 A 11,347 296,903
2 to 3 months 2ZE3E A 494 64,196
Over 3 months B3B3 1E A 19,570 229,848
1,047,320 1,032,041
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled FEREB ZRARTEFE - —MRENF308E
on credit terms ranging from 30 to 90 days. RZEEMEE -
Included in the Group's trade payables are amounts due AEBEZENESRFERMNGHEEE AL
to Haier Affiliates amounting to HK$1,016,375,000 (2007: X A 7/1,016,375,0008 ( — T T + 4 :
HK$1,008,252,000), which are repayable on similar credit terms 1,008,252,000/8 7T ) * 3% 3K 18 78 &z B EL ) [R] 48
to those offered by other similar suppliers of the Group. Further HEEETAEBIEE ZEERRER - BH
details of the purchases from these related parties are set out in MZEMEATRE 2 Hi B HR BRE
note 14 to the financial statements. MizE14 ©
24. Other Payables and Accruals 24. HthERRR R EGTEE
Group Company
rEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—ERNF ZTTLF BBRNF —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT FET FH&TT

Other payables H fth FESF BR 5K 1,286,011 575,662 179,309 192,379
Accruals EETEE 257,694 438,240 5,076 9,980
1,543,705 1,013,902 184,385 202,359
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24,

25.

Other Payables and Accruals (Cont’d)

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals are amounts
due to Haier Affiliates amounting to HK$639,729,000 (2007:
HK$374,720,000). These amounts are unsecured,
and are repayable on demand. There was no payable due to
the directors of the Company as at 31 December 2008 (2007:
HK$16,936,000).

interest-free

Last year's other payables included an amount due to Haier
Electrical Appliances Third Holdings (BVI) Limited amounting to
HK$175,443,000 which were unsecured,
repayable at 31 December 2008. This payable amount became

interest-free and were

repayable on demand at 31 December 2008.
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HttEN R KRBT EE(E)

AEEZ HEMNERRES A BERIERNE
8 B B A 15X 78639,729,0008 t( = Z +
4 374,720 ooo;‘%ﬁ) o M EFIE QMR
RENEBAEE - R_ZEEN\F+_A=+

B BERMNARIEZZBE(ZTTLF
16,936,0005% 7T ) °
EF - ﬁfﬂzrﬁ‘ﬁ BRI SR ERE =
f&BVNERA A5 15175 443,000;%7c , z%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁ
BN 535&,,\ _Z@?\)\i-t-:)ﬂz-?——ﬁﬁ%f

B ZENFEER_ZEENF+_A=+—
HiZBAERE °

Interest-Bearing Borrowings 25. ;T EEE
Group FEE
2008 2007
—EEN\E “TT+F
Effective Year of Effective Year of
interest rate maturity interest rate maturity
1 Yilk ) RS g
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
TR TET
Current E
Other loans HER 5.4-7.56 2009 28,168 6.57 2008 62,032
Convertible notes (note 26) ARRER (f526) - 4.75 2008 169,344
28,168 231,376
Non-current FERE
Other loans HiE R 5.75-7.74 2011 134,252  6.75-7.20  2009-2011 152,941
162,420 384,317
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25. Interest-Bearing Borrowings (Cont’d)

25.:tEE& (&)

Company PN
2008 2007
“EEZN\fE S 3
Effective Year of Effective Year of
interest rate maturity interest rate maturity
ERA= Ep BIRH= Ealf i
) HK$'000 % HK$'000
TER THER
Current RE
Convertible notes (note 26) AR (H/2F26) - - - 4.75 2008 169,344
Group Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEENG T F ZBENFE _—TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FA&TT THET FA&T
Borrowings repayable: ARUATREEREZEE :
Within one year or —FAFIRAA
on demand 28,168 231,376 - 169,344
In the second year F_4F - 26,524 - -
In the third to F-FEFRF
fifth years, inclusive (BEEEME) 134,252 126,417 - -
162,420 384,317 - 169,344

FiARBEEH REER HuEFERER
B EATHESRERARERZER  &F
FEN 54587 56[FE5T B RAR—FANEE -
B —F 1A EE Z155134,252,000%8 7T( =
TTH4F 1 152,941,000/ 7T ) 4 o 615 8 B
BEAERZ A S Xz H A BN %R
FMIEE14 -

All interest-bearing borrowings are unsecured. The other loans
represented loans borrowed from Haier Finance, which are
guaranteed by Haier Corp, bear interest at rates ranging from
5.4%to 7.56% per annum and are repayable within one year,
except for borrowings of HK$134,252,000 (2007: HK$152,941,000)
which are repayable beyond one year. Further details of the interest
expenses attributable to the loans borrowed from Haier Finance
are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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25.

26.

Interest-Bearing Borrowings (Cont’d)

Except for the convertible notes, all borrowings of the Group bear
interest at floating interest rates. The Group's other loans are
denominated in RMB and the convertible notes are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other borrowings approximate
to their fair values.

Convertible Notes

On 28 January 2005, the Company issued convertible notes with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$260 million to a subsidiary
of Haier Group, Qingdao Haier Group Holdings (BVI) Ltd. The
convertible notes have a three-year term and are non-interest-
bearing. Each note is convertible at any time prior to the fifth
business days before 27 January 2008, at the note holder’s option,
into the Company'’s ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.18
per share (adjusted to HK$1.8 per share as a result of the share
consolidation which became effective from 8 March 2007). When
the notes were issued, the prevailing market interest rate for similar
notes without the conversion option was higher than the interest
rate at which the notes were issued.

The fair value of the liability component of the convertible notes
was determined at the issuance date, using the prevailing market
interest rate for similar debt without a conversion option of 4.75%
and was originally carried as a long term liability. The remaining
portion was allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity. At the issuance date, the
liability and equity components of the convertible notes were split
as to HK$226,210,000 and HK$33,790,000, respectively

On 18 January 2008, the outstanding aggregate principal amount
of the convertible notes of HK$170 million were fully converted,
resulted in the issue of 94,444,444 additional ordinary shares of
the Company. Accordingly, there are additions of share capital
and premium of approximately HK$9 million and HK$183 million,
respectively, and a reduction in the equity component of the
convertible notes of approximately of HK$22 million.

25.

26.
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SrEERE(E)

BRATBERREIN - NEBMBBEHEEH
Kt B - AEBEMEFAARKSIE - A
BIRRRAILAETTINE -

AEERMES 2 RAEREAFERE

i

R EE

RZZBEZERE—-A=+/\H AR TF»ﬂiEE%
EvMBARS S EREEZERBVIVERA
;ﬂZlKi%E@;#260,000,000;%7EZEH§HX7T
B ABRBRERZFHA=F T5HE - F
BREAAR-ZZZENE-—A=-F+LHAFEA
8% % B RIFERIAZRISET(ER =5+
F=ANBERZKNE AR 2 TK1.8%
T2 BRREBEEZBERRARARILBR - &
BITREBR - WEBKEZ AEZERERTS
MERERETERZAERS -

ATERER A ERD A FERETHRIZA
BEB(LERRE) ZERTISMNE4.752)
EE - REARBARER - Ferso RoE

EERRESERAR ZBRE - RETH
B BNz ERERZEBRERTH D
A1 4226,210,0007% 7T 533,790,000/ 7T °

RZZEZENF—ATN\H BREBRAEERE
170,000,000/ 7T 2 Al IR R B E 2 HUH 4
B EE1794,444, 44408 AN A R BN EBIZ o B
gt IR RAR 5 5 B 5 Bl 1N%99,000,000/% 7T
1:.183,000,0007 7T + M ARRER 2 =B
Bl 4> 4922,000,0007 T °
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26. Convertible Notes (Cont’d)

26. TR IR RIE (&)

Group and Company FEERAAR
Liability component
BEHS
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FHT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 169,344 161,665
Interest expenses F B H 7 656 7,679
Conversion of R AR AR E IR
convertible notes (170,000) -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H = 169,344
27. Provisions 27. B1E
Group rEHE
Product warranties
and installation
EmRERRZE
2008 2007
—EETNF ZETLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FExT FA&T
At 1 January Kn—H—H 189,559 171,165
Additional provision g 6 438,400 336,748
Amounts utilised FAEHHEE
during the year (368,131) (330,521)
Exchange realignment PE H R 12,687 12,167
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 272,515 189,559
Portion classified FWERBI B E 2 EB D
as current liabilities (182,181) (63,898)
Non-current portion ERENE 90,334 125,661
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27. Provisions (Cont’d) 27. BE (&)
The Group provides installation services and warranties of one AEBEREFPRHEERBRAH —E=F2
to three years to its customers on washing machines and water HREREKEFRE - AERBEZEmAIEEE
heaters, under which faulty products are repaired or replaced. The gEH - RERESBREERNTFRERER
amount of the provision for the warranties is estimated based on KRS - #ERBEELEREET o (At BERE
sales volumes and past experience of the level of installation services BE - WREE R ERIEET
rendered, repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
Deferred Tax 28. IEEBIE
The movements in deferred tax assets (mainly relating to accruals RN REHEEE(FEHEGE R REEE
and provisions) and deferred tax liabilities (mainly relating to ) REEFIR B E(EZEBHTAERE) &80
withholding taxes) during the year are as follows: T :
Group rEH
Deferred tax assets
BELEBIEEE
2008 2007
—BENEF ZETLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt s FTHET FAIT
At 1 January n—H—H 49,506 34,681
Deferred tax credited/ FREMERALR
(charged) to the (30BR) 2 EIEF IR 10
income statement
during the year (20,251) 12,245
Exchange realignment PE L 2,797 2,580
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 32,052 49,506
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28.

Deferred Tax (Cont’d) 8. EIEFIIE(E)
Deferred tax liabilities
R E & &
2008 2007
—BEBN\EF —ETEF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 THET FHBT
At 1 January Kn—H—H - 7,465
Deferred tax charged/ FRERRET
(credited) to the income 1 (ABE) 10
statement during ZIEFERIA
the year 10,890 (7,656)
Exchange realignment b 5, A2 - 191
At 31 December RtT-A=+—H 10,890 -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$36,098,000
(2007: HK$36,098,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$190,624,000 (2007: HK$3,907,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profit. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividend declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.
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N BB B E A 2 B8 B 18 /336,098,000
BIt( ZZ T+ 4 1 36,098,0008 T ) © A
ERAREZEELEBIEZ AR BBERD
wmA e AEERFREAEELEZRIEEERA
190,624,000/ 7o( = T =T + £ : 3,907,000/
7T) - R —ERFNE R R & ERTR
MzBIEEE  HREERBEERAEBES
R2ARRRMTBAR - k&R ZEESE
BREERBEE  MARBTRAE A
I P E) AR RS 18 2 ERFUR T o

RIBHRBEDERSHE - RPBEARERL Z I
BRECERAIIFREEZETRZRE @ AR
10% 2 R RN - ZREB —FFTN\F
—HA—BREXN LEAR-_ZEZTLEF+_H
=t+—BRZEBHN - HPBEEINEHREERE
AR ORI VMEHE  MRAREZE
HRE - AEBEZERBERI10% - Bt » 8
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28. Deferred Tax (Cont’d) 28. IEFERIIE (42)
Except for the deferred tax liabilities of HK$10,890,000, which [ 3 & % 78 & 1510,890,0007 T 9N 52 B A
represents the withholding taxes for the earnings of the PRC FREBARIR=ZZZENFE+=_A=+—8#
subsidiaries to be remitted, as at 31 December 2008, no deferred tax ME 2 A A 2 TR - Bt AR B B A
has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable B2 B AR EZNTENR 2 RET&F 2
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding taxes BNHERAECEHIEEE EFRAE - %S5
of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the BRARITARAREERAIRRRDIKFIBEZER
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will FIl o B AR B P BT /B A B1HR B B A iR RE B 1R
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate BENABRACEREZZBBEN_ST/\F 1
amount of temporary differences associated with investments in —A=+—H#%A21,004,0008 T( ZTZ+
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities Ffm) o
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$21,004,000 at
31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment 2R &) ) H AR SRR AN 2 AR S 42 B S R TS
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. THIER -
29. Issued Equity 29. B B{TRER
Group AEE
Issued equity
ERTER
HK$'000
FHTT
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZETt+F—-—HA—H 1,212,960
Exercise of share options TR R AR 35,250
At 31 December 2007 and RZETLEF
beginning of year +ZA=+—RAKEN 1,248,210
Conversion of PR B8
convertible notes 192,094
Shares repurchased EARliip) (1,302)
At 31 December 2008 RZZEZNF+_HA=+T—H 1,439,002
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29. BB 1TH=R(Z)

HRERZRAKBENE RO BTREZS
B(ERFAEERBRZBA - RO E R
ABBR)BEARRNR_ZZEAF—A—+/\BM
WS EEMBRARZEETERSERAR
Al B EWB A REMERE MEREBV)
BRARRAEZHHBEARN T RF+ =
A=+—BRZEBTHESE - MY mkE
R R B A 1T f AR N S HR RT 4R B R AR T B
EZEEREE o RAZRB(ANRMER RER)
REEER AR BRAEREEFRAA 2R

equity structure (i.e., the number and type of shares) reflects the 21 o

29. Issued Equity (Cont’d)

Due to the use of the reverse acquisition basis of accounting,
the amount of issued equity, which includes share capital, share
premium and contributed surplus in the consolidated balance
sheet, represents the amount of issued equity of legal subsidiaries
acquired by the Company on 28 January 2005 and the amount of
issued equity of Haier Electrical Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI)
Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its then subsidiaries at 31 December 2006 plus equity changes
of the Company resulting from the exercise of share options and
conversion of convertible notes after the reverse acquisition. The

equity structure of the legal parent, Haier Electronics Group Co.,

Ltd.
Company PO/
2008 2007
—BENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER T
Authorised: I
30,000,000,000 30,000,000,000/%
(2007: 30,000,000,000) —ZZ+4 :30,000,000,0000%)
shares of HK$0.1 each BREE0 BT 2D 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTREHRE :
1,951,673,905 1,951,673,9058%
(2007: 1,859,323,461) (Z=Z 4 :1,859,323,4615%)
shares of HK$0.1 each BREE. BT Z’D 195,167 185,932
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29. OB 1TH=R(E)

REABRARBEETRAZZZHEN

29. Issued Equity (Cont’d)

A summary of the transactions during the year involving the

Company’s issued share capital is as follows: T~
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BERTROHE BRTRA RO R E R #st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FAET
At 31 December 2006 and RZBTRE
beginning of year +=—A=+—-AREN 18,365,734,612 1,836,573 768,565 2,605,138
Exercise of share R & A
options before share TR RS AR (fifati)
consolidation (note i) 55,000,000 5,500 2,840 8,340
Capital reduction (note i) BB (i 2ii) - (1,657,866) - (1,657,866)
Share consolidation (note i) R0 &0k (ffztii) (16,578,661,151) = = =
Exercise of share options W& &g
after share consolidation TR RS AR (ffati)
(note i) 17,250,000 1,725 25,185 26,910
At 31 December 2007 and RZZT+F
beginning of year +TZA=+—BREN 1,859,323,461 185,932 796,590 982,522
Shares repurchased (note i) AR R, (2,094,000) (209) (1,093) (1,302)
Conversion of
convertible notes (note iv) RBTRRRR (fetiv) 94,444,444 9,444 182,650 192,094
At 31 December 2008 RZZZNE+=A=+—H 1,951,673,905 195,167 978,147 1,173,314
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29. Issued Equity (Cont’d)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 30 to
the financial statements.

29. BB 1TH=R(Z)
Bt

()

AR AR BT Bl MR IR 813 1T 2 AR
B2 BRI I S R RE30

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general (i) WMEBEAARTNRZZZTZTLF=HAELHET
meeting of the Company held on 7 March 2007, the Company ZBRRFRAE BB FRIIAZESR -
reduced the nominal value of each of its issued shares from RATEAZIEESREFTRMD ZEH
HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by the cancellation of paid-up capital of ERAR0.098TT - HEGREETRGOZ
HK$0.09 on each of its issued shares (the “Capital Reduction”). E B H0.1074 7T Hl R 20.0174 7 ([ AR AN HI
Immediately following the Capital Reduction, every 10 issued ) o ZEERAHIRE - AR RERAH]
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 resulting from the Capital RMEE 2 F10RFREMB0.0ONVETLZE
Reduction were consolidated into one consolidated share of BITRMEH A —REMBENET ZEHF
HK$0.1 (the “Share Consolidation”). The Capital Reduction D (T EBF]) o BRZASEIR &A% D & 6
and Share Consolidation became effective from 8 March EHZZTTLF=H/\BREER
2007.
All of the repurchased shares were cancelled during the year (i) FTEBERODERFEATHE  MAQA
and the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by ZBEITRAINE R EEE T BAHIR -
the par value thereof. The premium and related expenses paid REBEEAREN 2 HEERERAS D
on the repurchases of the ordinary shares of HK$1,093,000 1,093,000/ 7T 2 78 AR 17 )4 18 AR A1 #0 BR ©
were charged to share premium account. An amount equivalent WAERE R EBRATE - AER L BR
to the par value of the ordinary shares was transferred to the EE 2 BEEDEEAE R EE i -
capital redemption reserve as set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
Details of the repurchases are summarised as follows: REEIFFEMmn T
Price per share
Number of Highest Lowest Total
Month shares repurchased BREE price paid
A& BE DB E BE BIE BNEAER
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FAT
September 2008 —ZEENFNA 281,000 0.79 0.78 223
October 2008 —ZTENFTA 1,813,000 0.79 0.38 1,079
2,094,000 1,302

On 18 January 2008, the outstanding aggregate principle
amount of the convertible notes were fully converted and
resulted in the issue of 94,444,444 additional ordinary shares.
Details of this transaction is disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.
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30. Share Option Scheme 30. B #EETE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to the eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
operations of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any employee, executive or officer of the Group
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company)
and any supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder, customer,
partner, business associate who, in the sole discretion of the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”), has contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective on 28 February
2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme is such number of
shares, when aggregated with shares subject to any other share
option scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of shares issuable
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
the issue of a circular by the Company (and if required, the holding
company) and the shareholders’ approval of the Company (and if
required, the approval of the shareholders of the holding company)
at a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates,
are subject to the approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (and if required, the independent
non-executive directors of the holding company), excluding the
independent non-executive director(s) of the Company and the
holding company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In
addition, any share option granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of grant or with an aggregate
value (based on the closing price of the shares of the Company as at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, is subject to the issue of a circular by the Company (and if
required, the holding company) and the shareholders’ approval of
the Company (and if required, the approval of the shareholders of
the holding company) in advance at a general meeting.

ARRBERAA— AR R &) ([ FERUERT &)
HENEABLEBEER2ERE/AKER
BZRMIELERL - BRE S A ER2 A
ERRAREZE[RE  TRABREEA
B(BEARARZHITRIFNTES)  UEA
RAEFE((EF2 D 2BRERR/EAKE
BFRREB T HER - BRE - 2R - &
ABR-FP BHEEBBEA - BERE
SER-EEF AT ABREN - Mk
ZITEEFRERT I - FHZ BEFI0FAE
2 o

RIBREIE S 8 e R B 2 BB A Y 2 B £
208 N EAR R BHEA A A0 B A AR AT 81 P8 2 X
NEE  EeTGHRARBRESIRAER
RRBEBEITRA10% o PMEMR+—{E A HHE
N ERBERES S RADREREBER
BN ZBRE(BEETR  EHERER
TR BITEMAARSAER2EE
Bz H&=aROHBE - URHEBALQRD#
TRMI1% AR - MHFREBBZI%REBZE
Mt AIARRB(R(MAERR)ZERAR)AE
FETEBHERBERASHERKARBBRER(K
(EFR)ER AR ZBERDHLAE ©

MARRIZES  HRTHABKEBZRER
BESAZEMBMEARLERE - BELME
BEARRZBYINTES(R(NERE

TR AR 2 B IENITE S ) (5 BB IRE
AREANZARR RERRRIBMYIENITE SRR
GN) o o - IRAMER @ A R AR A
ZEERRYABIIIERNTESIHEES BEM
BMBEARLZEREMSZRD  BRELE
BARREEITRMD01%ZAE(REREE
HZAAR ARG 2 Wi E & )#8iE5,000,0007%
7T BIARAR(R(INAFE)ERA R ) AT 3
B RBERBRAGEHRKAARKRR(E (0

BE)ERARZBR)BLAE
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30. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) 30. B AEETEI(E)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the Board, and commences on a
specified date and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years
from the date of grant of the share options or the expiry date of
the Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet of
the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a trading
day; (i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year, the Company did not grant any share options
under the Share Options Scheme and there was no outstanding
share option as at 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

Details of the movements of share options under the Share Option
Scheme during 2007 were as follows:

BRHBREZEZRTNER B EF288 M
ERAXNSRBAREBS KB TRER - ER
HBREZITEHHESSEE  HEE A
HARERLBEREADHES TEBRTFZA
KBRS BEH A (AREERE)BLE -

BREZITEEHESSETE  ETSERT
I=Fz&BE (VA RABROHRELER (W
ARRSA)EMIMEBRABERMYIZ KT
B (VAR MRERREE BT AER S
REBMIMERBRERMIIZFHRTE &
(i) N DR 2 EE

B BE T RA ARBBREHRBRRE
ERFZRER] -

FA - ARBWEREBRAET SR BB
ig . PR_ZEZNFT _A=T—"BLER
ATEZBRE(CZETLF - &) o

—TRLER BREHEETRREZ 2
HEWT -
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: o > =
30. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) 30. lERRERTEI(22)
2007 TR
Price of the Company's
Number of share options shares (note 3)
BREHE ADARHER (13
Date of Exercise
Outstanding Outstanding  grant of Exercise price of
asat  Exercised Lapsed asat  share period share Immediately At exercise
Name or category 1 January during during 31 December  options of share options  before the date of
of participant 2007 the year the year 2007 (note 1) options (note 2) exercise date options
RZBSLF
RZBELE t=8  BR BR
SREER -A-H =t-B  ERHAH BR BTRE 2% RERE
EE] HAGE AR ERAM HATE 0 BT Wi#2) GRREE  GEEE
per share per share per share
HKS HKS HKS
AT B AT
Executive directors HTES
W Ke Song AR 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 191172002 19/11/2003 - 18/11/2007 150 255 250
Chai Yong Sen (note 4) 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 191172002 19/11/2003 - 18/11/2007 1.50 255 250
Liang Hai Shan 281 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 191172002 19/11/2003 - 18/11/2007 150 255 250
Cui Shao Hua E)E 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 191172002 19/11/2003 - 18/11/2007 150 255 250
4,000,000 (4,000,000 ) = =
Independent BUkyES
non-executive directors
Fung Hoi Wing, Henry (note 5) 100,000 (100,000) - - 16/8/2002 16/8/2003 - 15/8/2007 1.56 253 257
Other participants EftpRE
In aggregate G 22,650,000 (18,650,000) (4,000,000 ) - 16/8/2002 16/8/2003 - 15/8/2007 156 255 250

26,750,000 (22,750,000) (4,000,000 ) =
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30. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment(s)
in the case of rights or bonus share issues, or other similar
changes in the share capital of the Company.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the date
of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange closing
price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of
grant of the options. The price of the Company’'s shares
disclosed immediately before the exercise date of the share
options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing
prices immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised over all of the exercises of options within the
disclosure line.

Mr. Chai Yong Sen resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 15 February 2007.

Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, and Mr. Fung Hoi Wing, Henry, resigned
as independent non-executive directors of the Company with
effect from 21 June 2007.

31. Reserves

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 13 of
the financial statements.

(i)  Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, certain
of the Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a portion of their profits to reserve
funds. These funds are non-distributable in the form of
cash dividends. When determining the appropriations
to these funds, the net profits of these subsidiaries are
determined in accordance with the applicable financial

rules and regulations of the PRC.
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31. Reserves (Cont’d)

(@) Group (Cont’d)

131

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd
BHEREEERAE

31. R (&)

(a) ZA&EE (&)

(i) The Group's capital reduction reserve arose from the (i) AEBZBRAHBRFBEEEENR=ZF
reduction in the nominal value of each of the issued SF=A\BERFHARRER
shares of the Company from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01 by BTN 2 B8R R ZN0.097% T -
the cancellation of paid-up capital of HK$0.09 on each HARRBRE ZEITRM ZHES
of the issued shares of the Company effective from 0.10/8 THIRZE0.0138TT - AEE 2
8 March 2007. The Group’s capital reserve originally RAFEE R AR RAE £ 2 &R
represented the difference between the credit arising 1,657,866,0007% T £ 82 13 A 3 45 7K
from the Capital Reduction of HK$1,657,866,000 and SEREEE1,196,370,0007% T /A
the amount transferred to eliminate the accumulated HEZERE -
losses of the Group of HK$1,196,370,000.

(i) The Group's capital redemption reserve arose from the (i) FA - ANEEZEABEEFEHSHRD
share repurchases during the year. Further details of these BOELE - BEZERMHER Z#E—
share repurchases are set out in note 29 to the financial A IBE PRI IR &R MTE29 o
statements.

(b) Company (b) AA2F
Retained
Share Capital profits/
premium Contributed redemption (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
BAHME REEH/
ROBEE  BARHK e (RiER) wm
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
izt TR T TR TR THET

At 1 January 2007 RZZEZT+F—F—H 768,565 190,870 - (1,201,613) (242,178)

Capital reduction ARAHR 29 - 1,657,866 - - 1,657,866

Transfer of contributed BRAARR

surplus to offset PAESE 25 B 1R
against accumulated
losses - (1,196,370) - 1,196,370 -

Exercises of share options  7{FEEk#E 28,025 = = - 28,025

Profit for the year FREF - - - 183,537 183,537

At 31 December 2007 RIBZLE+-A=+—RAK

and 1 January 2008 2T )\#—HF—H 796,590 652,366 - 178,294 1,627,250
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31. Reserves (Cont’d) 31. f@&fE(2)
(b) Company (Cont'd) (b) EQF(E)
Retained
Share Capital profits/
premium Contributed redemption (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
BXEE  REERN/
RAOBEE  HARHK wE (R5ER) k]
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pzt THT THT THT THT THET
At 31 December 2007 RIBRLE+-A=1t—HR
and 1 January 2008 2T \#—HF—H 796,590 652,366 - 178,294 1,627,250
Shares repurchased AR 29 (1,093) = 209 (209) (1,093)
Conversion of RATHRRER
convertible notes 182,649 - - - 182,649
Interim dividend RS 12 = = = (39,054) (39,054)
Special interim dividend 5l IS 12 - - - (39054)  (39,054)
Profit for the year FRER - - - 108148 108,148
At 31 December 2008 R-ZFEN\F+-_A=+—H 978,146 652,366 209 208,125 1,838,846
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess RATZBA RS AFTBEEN B A BR G
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired, NTFEBARNRRNREEARZETROE
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued B8  BREBEE-NN—FQFDE
in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of (BIER])  MARRIEETHERATDIR
Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable THRER ©
to shareholders in certain circumstances.
32. Contingent Liabilities 32. ZAAREE
At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the Company REER  AEEXARRHEERENEA
had any significant contingent liabilities. BfE-
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33. Operating Lease Arrangements 3. REMATH
The Group leases certain properties under operating lease AEBERBEEHOTEHERETYE - ZE
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms ZUOERBNT—FERF -
ranging from one to five years.
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had total REZR » AEERARBRBER T HARE 2
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating B2 NERUB 2 & B R RxRIE S B
leases falling due as follows: LU
Group Company
rEHE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007

—BEN\E —TTLF ZBENE CTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT FERT FAT
Within one year —FRN 14,087 16,288 249 998
In the second to fifth F_EhF(BEEREMSF)
years, inclusive 11,751 5,024 - 249
25,838 21,312 249 1,247
34. Commitments 34. &IE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 33 Br b SCPfT RE33 T mE sl 48 & A A AN - R
above, the Group had the following commitments at the balance REZEB BT AR :
sheet date:
Group rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Contracted, but not EHEEES T
provided for:
Property, plant and Yz - B MR
equipment EER: VA 18,328
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34. Commitments (Cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not have any significant

commitments other than those disclosed in note 33 above.

35. Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and financial liabilities

at amortised cost of the Group at the balance sheet date are as

follows:

Financial assets

34, E&IE(E)

REEB - ARFIRR EXPHEIIMPEE SN

AL EARALE -

35. 8T ESHE

WEER - AEEZ &K EURRIA K IR # 5

KAz FBREZREEND

MBEE

Loans and receivables

BRI ERRE
2008 2007
—EENF ZERLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Trade and bills receivables BUE SRR R EE 2,398,419 1,347,026
Other receivables (note 21) E fth U AR R (Ff5E21) 63,392 126,882
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 696,151 595,426
3,157,962 2,069,334
Financial liabilities MBaE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

BBERASIEZHEEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Trade payables JERTE 5 8RR 1,047,320 1,032,041
Other payables (note 24) E M ERK (A7E24) 1,286,011 575,662
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEER 162,420 214,973
Convertible notes GIE:Y &5 - 169,344
2,495,751 1,992,020
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35. Financial Instruments By Category (Cont’d) 35. €M IED¥E(E)
The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and financial liabilities REER AR ZE R KW GBI 3
at amortised cost of the Company at the balance sheet date are KA MBEBEZEREBEAT :
as follows:
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables
EXKERFRIE
2008 2007
—EBEENE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Due from subsidiaries JiE U Bt BB A B FRIE
(note 18) (Hiz£18) 163,171 163,575
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEIEER 159,088 143,403
322,259 306,978
Financial liabilities g =K
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBHERARTIRZHBEE
2008 2007
—ZEEN\F —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Other payables (note 24) EAth e BRFR (AT 2E24) 179,309 192,379
Due to subsidiaries XN NG 85,088 81,060
Convertible notes GIEAY 7 - 169,344
264,397 442,783
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36.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
borrowings, convertible notes and cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations or acquisitions. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and bills receivables
and trade, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The board review and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating interest
rates. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to

hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on
floating rate borrowings). There is no significant impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. ¥ EREEEERBER(£)
Policies (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d) FRE R E)

Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in basis points in profit before tax

B EHA BB AT %8 7 42 hn

(T¥) / GE2)
HK$'000
FHAIT

2008 —EENF
Renminbi AR (50) 801
Renminbi AR 50 (801)
2007 —ETLF
Renminbi AR 50 (1,075)
Renminbi AR (50) 1,075
Foreign currency risk ShEE R
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures AEBEPRZXS5EERRE - ZFRABREZRE
mainly arise from sales or purchases by the Group’s operating units $’i B 7E R B KBRS i 2 & 18 BB LA B 7 T A
operating in Mainland China in currencies other than the units’ BEE(AIARB)AIINEHETHENEE - &
functional currency (i.e., RMB). The Group does not enter into any £ 3] 00 f8 HE 1T AR AT S 22 5 LARUE 2N &= [ 2 b
hedging transactions in an effort to reduce the Group’s exposure R o
to foreign currency risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the balance sheet TRIREMEEMESHTE ZBERT @ K&
date to a reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of Euro, BN A N B EE - R K ABEEXEZ 52
United States Dollar and Japanese Yen, with all other variables held A2y GREHREBEEREBEZA
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the FEME) o $ANE B H i o WS AR

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no significant 2.
impact on other components of the Group’s equity.
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. ¥ EKREEEERBER(£)
Policies (Cont’d)

RSN )

Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in exchange rates in profit before tax

ERLH A RRBE A1 2 FIl 45 0
(k) / (R2)
% HK$'000
T
2008 —BENF
If Renminbi strengthens A RE L EREE 5 (6,355)
against Euro
If Renminbi strengthens AR HETHE 5 (5.,845)
against United
States Dollar
If Renminbi strengthens M ARB L AEME 5 (573)
against Japanese Yen
If Renminbi strengthens AR HEEHE 5 (1,486)
against Great
Britain Pound
If Renminbi weakens i AR LB ER (B (5) 6,355
against Euro
If Renminbi weakens M ARBHETRZE (5) 5,845
against United
States Dollar
If Renminbi weakens MAREE AERZE (5) 573
against Japanese Yen
If Renminbi weakens M AR R EERZE (5) 1,486
against Great
Britain Pound
2007 —ETAEF
If Renminbi strengthens M ARB L EBREE 5 (6,569)
against Euro
If Renminbi M ARB L ETHE
strengthens against 5 (2,384)
United States Dollar
If Renminbi strengthens M ARE L AEME 5 (538)
against Japanese Yen
If Renminbi weakens i AR LR ER (B (5) 6,569
against Euro
If Renminbi weakens M ARBHETRZE (5) 2,384
against United
States Dollar
If Renminbi weakens MAREE AERZE (5) 538

against Japanese Yen

Annual Report 2008
—ZENFER




Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=A=1—H

36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents and other receivables, arises from default
of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are analysed by customer/counterparty and by
geographical region. At the balance sheet date, the Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as 96% (2007: 94%) of the
Group's trade receivables were due from the five largest customers
of the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 20
to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and other
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to renew its loan agreements
with Haier Finance or major local banks in Mainland China upon
the maturity of the Group’s short term bank loans and other

borrowings.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. ¥ EKREEEERBER(£)
Policies (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d) mEE < RR(E)
2008 —BENF
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
—F %%
—FRRRER EEEENR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTHET FHET
Trade payables FERTE SR 1,047,320 - 1,047,320
Other payables (note 24) HAb RS BRFR (Mt 24) 1,286,011 - 1,286,011
Interest-bearing borrowings st EEE 29,689 156,466 186,155
2,363,020 156,466 2,519,486
2007 —ETEF
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
—F &3k
—FRFIRER £ [E] 7E 12 ) A FoE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FHIT FHIT
Trade payables FERTE 5 8RR 1,032,041 - 1,032,041
Other payables (note 24) HAb RS BRIR (M at24) 575,662 = 575,662
Interest-bearing borrowings ~ stEEE 63,414 188,894 252,308
Convertible notes ATRRERE 170,000 - 170,000
1,841,117 188,894 2,030,011
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36. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 36. i EREEEERBER(£)
Policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) REBELERGE)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at REZEBR  RBEOETNNATGE A2

the balance sheet date, based on the contractual undiscounted A ECZREBESMT ¢

payments, is as follows:

2008 —EENF

Beyond one

year or

Within no fixed

one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total

—FHR
—FRFIRER & E E BN et
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
Other payables (note 24) EAtb S BR SR (FT2E24) 179,309 - 179,309
Due to subsidiaries FEASTBT /8 A B15RIE - 85,088 85,088
179,309 85,088 264,397

2007 —ETLF

Beyond one

year or

Within no fixed

one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total

— a3k
—FRFTIRER 48 ] 72 & K EA HEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T FAET
Other payables (note 24) HE MR (At 24) 192,379 - 192,379
Due to subsidiaries FERTH B A AIFRIA - 81,060 81,060
Convertible notes QY &5 170,000 - 170,000
362,379 81,060 443,439
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36.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Cont’d)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
debt divided by the total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain
the gearing ratio not exceeding 100%. Total debt includes interest-
bearing borrowings and convertible notes. The gearing ratios as at
the balance sheet dates were as follows:

36. W KEREEBERBEE)

EXER
AEEEAER 2 TR ARERBRAKERE
BREZENREFBREARLE - UXHH
EBRRBRRFRRSEHE -

AEBERBEFRNEBEE R AELEARR
B REFARBEARE  AEETEAR
AR Z RS - MRRREEANLEITH
B o 7R & B R AT AR SN B 0 & AR B SR AT AR
R-BE_FTTN\E+_A=+—BR=-ZFT
tFETA=t—HLFE FHREAEER
% BORSERF I EEE o

AEBERBEEEAL R (AMERAERERE
BERFER - ARBEZBRAEFRBEERL
KT HBiB100% - BEBHREREFEEERA
BREE - NWEEH - BEEREENT

Group REH
2008 2007
—EENEF T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 162,420 214,973
Convertible notes AR - 169,344
Total debt B EE 162,420 384,317
Total equity el 1,269,095 942,124
Gearing ratio BEERLLE 13% 41%

Annual Report 2008
—ZENFER



Notes to Financial Statements

BAREERAR AL

31 December 2008
—EEN\F+=-A=1—H

37.

38.

Post Balance Sheet Events

On 25 February 2009, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Roofer Securities Limited (“Roofer Securities”), pursuant to
which the Company appointed Roofer Securities to procure not
fewer than six placees to subscribe for up to 75,000,000 shares
of the Company at a placing price of HK$0.66 per each placing
share (the “Placing Shares”). In addition, the Company has agreed
to issue non-listed warrants, on the basis of four warrants for each
placing share issued at no initial price. This entitles the holder of
each warrant to subscribe for one new share at an exercise price
of HK$0.66 at any time for a period of four years from the date

of issue of such warrant (the “Warrants"”).

The share placement was completed on 23 March 2009 and the
Placing Shares represent approximately 3.7% of the Company's
issued share capital as enlarged by the placing and the net proceeds
of HK$47.4 million were raised by the placing. If allotted and
issued, the Warrants would give rise to 300,000,000 new shares
of the Company, which represents approximately 12.89% of the
Company’s issued share capital as enlarged by the issue of the
placing shares and the warrant shares. The net proceeds from
the exercise of all of the Warrants will be approximately HK$198
million.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 17 April 2009.

37.

38.
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Five Year Financial Summary

LFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority

interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from

the published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as

appropriate, is set out below.

ATHINAEE 2 BEREMBRFEES &
E BERIBBRRESHE - Eﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬂ
BREVUBERE  LEEHEE Z2E5,
EHOM

Year ended 31 December

BEt=-A=t+—-HLEFE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZEENE —ZETHF —TTRF —ZTHFE —_TTNF
HK$' 000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHx T FET FEL FHBIL

RESULTS £
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEER
REVENUE & 11,409,480 8,549,239 6,901,705 5,541,136 4,523,857
Cost of sales SHE AR (8,120,162) (6,058,011) (5,062,200) (4,285,082) (3,559,383)
Gross profit EF 3,289,318 2,491,228 1,839,505 1,256,054 964,474
Other income and gains H AU R lezs 34,487 34,521 42,960 10,614 10,115
Selling and distribution costs SHE K5 SR (2,268,165) (1,646,661) (1,243,740) (804,783) (647,089)
Administrative expenses THREHR (824,152) (527,071) (401,679) (265,121) (146,918)
Other expenses HAh & (13,442) (5,993) (2,441) (6,017) -
Finance costs BMEKA (15,733)  (24,068)  (11,109)  (16,162) (6,145)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLATE R 202,313 321,956 223,496 174,585 174,437
Tax Gy (27,336)  (96,259)  (39,710)  (22,999)  (20,209)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BFEREER 2 FRRA

FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 174,977 225,697 183,786 151,586 154,228
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEEEK
Profit/(loss) for the year from a BRIEE RS 2 F

discontinued operation miwF, (EE) - - 103,420  (479,068) 31,208
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR wAl,/ (EE) 174,977 225,697 287,206  (327,482) 185,436
Attributable to: Efh :

Equity holders of the parent NEIRERE A 152,183 172,131 262,349  (363,751) 147,367

Minority interests DY R 22,794 53,566 24,857 36,269 38,069

174,977 225,697 287,206  (327,482) 185,436

ASSETS, LIABILITIES BE BERVERRES

AND MINORITY INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEH&E 4,360,776 3,666,212 3,373,280 3,519,723 3,019,111
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELE (3,091,681) (2,724,088) (2,574,713) (2,410,301) (1,975,235)
MINORITY INTERESTS DEBRRER (108,208)  (94,724) (154,448) (162,507) (261,387)

1,160,887 847,400 644,119 946,915 782,489
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